

Labour conflicts, Human Resource Practices , and Employee Attitude and Behaviours in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia

Ye Mon

Master of Arts in Human Resource Management

National College of Ireland

Submitted to National College of Ireland
August 10, 2024

Submission of Thesis and Dissertation National College of Ireland Research Students Declaration Form (Thesis/Author Declaration Form)

Student Name:	Ye Mon	
Student Number:	23128518	
Degree for which thesis is submitted:	Master of Art in Human Resource Management	
Title of Thesis:	Labour conflicts, Human Resource Practices and Employee and Behaviours in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia	Attitude
Thesis Supervisor:	Dr Julius Nyiawung	
Date:	August 10, 2024	
Material submitted for a	ward	
A. I declare that this w	vork submitted has been composed by myself.	
	erbatim extracts contained in the thesis have been distinguished the sources of information specifically acknowledged.	ied by
quotation marks an	a the sources of information specifically acknowledged.	
C. I agree to my thesis open access reposit	s being deposited in the NCI Library online ory NORMA.	_
used in any other so $Or *I$ declare that to	nat no material contained in the thesis has been abmission for an academic award. he following material contained in the thesis	
	bmission for the award of ad the awarding body and list the material below)	

National College of Ireland Project Submission Sheet

Student Name: Ye Mon

Student ID: 23128518

Programme: MAHRM Year: 2023-2024

Module: Dissertation

Lecturer: Research Methods and Dissertation

Submission Due Date: August 10, 2024

Project Title: Labour conflicts, Human Resource Practices and Employee Attitude

and Behaviours in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia

Word Count: 17,306 words (without cover/submission sheets and references)

I hereby certify that the information contained in this (my submission) is information pertaining to research I conducted for this project. All information other than my own contribution will be fully referenced and listed in the relevant bibliography section at the rear of the project. <u>ALL</u> internet material must be referenced in the references section. Students are encouraged to use the Harvard Referencing Standard supplied by the library. To use other author's written or electronic work is illegal (plagiarism) and may result in disciplinary action. Students may be required to undergo a viva (oral examination) if there is suspicion about the validity of their submitted work.

Signature: Ye Mon

Date: August 10, 2024

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS:

- 1. Please attach a completed copy of this sheet to each project (including multiple copies).
- 2. Projects should be submitted to your Programme Coordinator.
- 3. You must ensure that you retain a HARD COPY of ALL projects, both for your own reference and in case a project is lost or mislaid. It is not sufficient to keep a copy on computer. Please do not bind projects or place in covers unless specifically requested.
- 4. You must ensure that all projects are submitted to your Programme Coordinator on or before the required submission date. Late submissions will incur penalties.
- 5. All projects must be submitted and passed in order to successfully complete the year.

 Any project/assignment not submitted will be marked as a fail.

Office Use Only	
Signature:	
Date:	
Penalty Applied (if applicable):	

Submission of Thesis to Norma Smurfit Library National College of Ireland

Ye Mon

23128518

Student Name:

Student number:

School:	National College of Ireland		
Course:	Master of Art in Human Resource Management		
Degree to be awarded:	QQI level – 9 (CIPD accredited program)		
Thesis Title:	Labour conflicts, Human Resource Practices and Employee Attitude and Behaviours in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia		
available for consultate https://norma.ncirl.ie the accordance with normal of Ireland Institutional R I agree to an electronic celibrary. I also agree to an	our thesis will be lodged in the Norma Smurfit Library and will be tion. This electronic copy will be accessible in NORMA e National College of Ireland's Institutional Repository. In academic library practice all theses lodged in the National College epository (NORMA) are made available on open access. Topy of my thesis being available for consultation within the electronic copy of my thesis being made publicly available of Ireland's Institutional Repository NORMA.		
Signature of Candidate	: Ye Mon		
For completion by the S	School:		
The aforementioned thesis was received by			
Date:			
This signed form must school.	be appended to all copies of your thesis submitted to your		

AI Acknowledgement Supplement

[Insert Module Name] [Insert Title of your assignment]

Your Name/Student Number	Course	Date

This section is a supplement to the main assignment, to be used if AI was used in any capacity in the creation of your assignment; if you have queries about how to do this, please contact your lecturer. For an example of how to fill these sections out.

AI Acknowledgment

This section acknowledges the AI tools that were utilized in the process of completing this assignment.

Tool Name	Brief Description	Link to tool

Description of AI Usage

This section provides a more detailed description of how the AI tools were used in the assignment. It includes information about the prompts given to the AI tool, the responses received, and how these responses were utilized or modified in the assignment. One table should be used for each tool used.

[Insert Tool Name]	
[Insert Description of use]	
[Insert Sample prompt]	[Insert Sample response]

Evidence of AI Usage

This section includes evidence of significant prompts and responses used or generated through the AI tool. It should provide a clear understanding of the extent to which the AI tool was used in the assignment. Evidence may be attached via screenshots or text.

Additional Evidence:

[Place evidence here]

Additional Evidence:

[Place evidence here]

Table of Contents

Abstract	9
Acknowledgements	10
Chapter 1: Introduction	11
1.1 Research area	11
1.2 Research objectives	12
1.3 Research Questions	13
1.3.1 Main research question:	13
1.3.2 Sub research questions:	13
1.4 Justification for research	13
1.5 Profile of the country	14
1.6 Summary of chapter	15
1.7 Research structure	15
Chapter 2: Literature Review	15
2.1 Introduction	15
2.2 Individual conflicts	17
2.3 Collective conflicts	19
2.4 Right, Interests and Power based in Conflicts	20
2.5 Human Resource and Employee Relations in con	nflict Management21
2.6 Partnership practices	23
2.7 Employee Attitude and Behaviours	25
2.8 Conclusion	27
Chapter 3: Methodology	27
3.1 Introduction	27
3.2 Methodological approach	28
3.2.1 Quantitative approach	28
3.2.2 Qualitative approach	29
3.3 Choosing approach	29
3.4 Countries' profile	29
3.5 Data collecting	30
3.6 Gaining access	31
3.7 Informants and recruitment	31

3.8 Ethical considerations	32
3.9 Data Analysis	32
3.10 Conclusion	33
Chapter 4: Finding and Analysis	34
4.1 Introduction	34
4.2 Demographic Data	34
4.2.1 Gender	35
4.2.2 Education	35
4.2.3 Age	35
4.2.4 Position	36
4.2.5 Workplace location	36
4.3 Reliability Analysis	37
4.3.1 Labour conflicts	37
4.3.2 Partnership Practices	37
4.3.3 Employee Attitude and Behaviours	38
4.4 Descriptive statistics	38
4.4.1 Correlation coefficient	43
4.5 Hypothesis Testing	43
4.6 Summary	51
Chapter 5: Discussion, Recommendation and Conclusion	51
5.1 Introduction	51
5.2 Main findings	52
5.2.1 Review of findings	53
5.3 Discussion	54
5.4 Theoretical implications	55
5.5 Practical implication	56
5.6 Recommendations	57
5.7 Limitations	57
5.8 Ethical considerations	58
5.9 Conclusion	58
Personal Learning Reflective Essay (CIPD requirement)	59
References	61

List of Tables

Table 1. Gender35
Table 2. Education
Table 3. Age36
Table 4. Position
Table 5. Workplace location
Table 6. Cronbach's alpha result
Table 7. Labour conflicts
Table 8. Employee relations and partnership practices
Table 9. Employee attitude and behaviours
Table 10. Correlation Matrix43
Table 11. Regression analysis of Partnership Practices and Labour Conflicts44
Table 12. Regression analysis of Partnership Practices and Interest-based, Right based and Affect based conflicts
Table 13. Regression analysis of Partnership Practices and Employee Attitude and Behaviours47
Table 14. Regression analysis of Partnership Practices and employee commitment, satisfaction, and turnover
Table 15. Regression analysis of Workplace Conflicts and Employee Attitude and Behaviours

Abstract

Workplace conflict is an inevitable challenge faced by every organization, and a critical concern for both employees and employers. Conflicts can results in both positive and negative outcomes for employees and organizations. This study employs quantitative methods, including descriptive and regressions analysis, to examine the relationship between labour conflicts, partnership practices and employee attitudes and behaviours in specific ASEAN region, particularly in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. Data were collected from 152 respondents across these countries. The findings reveal that partnership practices can mitigate labour conflicts and enhance employee attitudes and behaviours. However, labour conflicts negatively impact on employee attitudes and behaviours in Thailand and Malaysia compared to Myanmar. The results show variation among cross countries. The theoretical and practical implications of these findings are discussed for further recommendation.

Keywords: Human Resource Management and Partnership Practices, Labour Conflicts, Employee Attitudes and Behaviours, Regression Analysis and ASEAN region

Acknowledgements

I would like to express my wholehearted thanks to everyone who supported and helped me out to complete this dissertation. First and foremost, I am deeply thankful to my supervisor, Dr Julius Nyiawung, for his invaluable guidance and insightful feedback throughout my entire research process. Moreover, I also extend my sincere thank all the faculty members, who provided not only knowledge but also their expertise throughout my academic journey and helping me to complete my academic goal and complete this research. I also appreciation the library staff for their assistance with technical challenges and practical issues during my academic years.

Furthermore, I am thankful to all of my friend who generously shared their knowledge and experiences with me completing my dissertation. I am also particularly grateful to all participants who took part in my survey and answered all my survey questions. Without their contributions, I could not have been able to accomplish this dissertation.

Finally, I would like thank to my family for giving me the opportunity to study at the National College of Ireland, in Dublin and their support both financial and emotional throughout my academic journey.

Chapter 1: Introduction

1.1 Research area

Workplace conflict is an essential aspect for both organizations and employees. Scholars argue that conflicts can have some workplace benefits, but it can perceive harmful and negative impacted workplace and employee attitudes and behaviours (de Wit et al 2012). In this research, focuses on Myanmar national workers who are experiencing a lack of workplace involvement, benefits and commitment in their workplaces across Myanmar, Thailand and Malaysia. Many human resource management journal and articles discussed workplace conflicts, including issues related to terms of employment, working conditions, violations of organizational policies, dissatisfaction and disengagement and absenteeism in the workplace (Martinez-Pecino et al., 2008). All types of conflicts can be categorized as either collective bargaining conflicts or individual conflicts in the workplace (Currie & Teague, 2016). Workplace conflicts lead to decrease in overall workplace productivity, unstable employment situation and high rate of dismissed and redundancies and many negatively impact both employees and employers (Xi et al,2017). In this kind of situation, scholars have examined several methods and strategies to handle workplace conflicts, both for collective and individual types of conflicts with formal and informal resolutions (Guest & Peccei., 2011). Furthermore, informal resolutions such as changing organizational structure and workplace practices can be innovative and attractive in managing labour conflicts and employee relations (Scheuer, 2006).

Human resource and employee relations practices and processes are typically adopted to address both collective and individual dispute between employees and employers. There are serval aspects and processes in employee relations and human resource practices, particularly concerning industrial relations within the workplace. Including creates formal management approach such involving third parties, trade unions and arbitration. Informal methods mean addressing appropriate strategies including human resource management practices (Michael, 2006). One of those, partnership practice is a useful approach for handling labour conflict with many reasons, this approach focuses on gaining mutual trust and respect, and open communication and shared versions and understanding between employees and employers (Guest & Peccei, 2001). These practices not only gain mutual interests in the workplace but also enhance collaboration between each party. Consequently, the result leads to positive outcomes and helps mediate workplace dispute. According to Guest and Peccei (2001), partnership practices can effectively handle and manage workplace conflicts, as supported by human resource and employee relations theory. In addition, in this research context identified and examines eight-dimensional partnership practices tested for improving labour conflicts and positively impact on employee attitudes and behaviours in specific regions of ASEAN countries.

Based on the previous studies discussed, the relationship between labour conflicts and human resource practices, it remains unclear whether labour conflicts and partnership practices impact employee attitudes and behaviours. However, labour conflicts have many negative effects and outcomes for groups or individuals within the workplace (Xi & Zhao, 2014). To examine this issue, it requires testing the relationship between labour conflicts and partnership practices and how they impact employee attitudes and behaviours. Therefore, the final aim of this study is to analysis and determine whether labour conflicts impact employee attitudes and behaviours in targeted ASEAN countries.

In this study area, I employed quantitative methods to examine the relationship between three variables labour conflicts, partnership practices and employee attitudes and behaviours. This analysis focuses on Myanmar nationals' workers who are working in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. Firstly, this study highlights an important contribution by exploring six dimensions of labour conflicts in specific countries in ASEAN countries. Secondly this research contributes to conflicts management literature by exploring eight dimensions of partnership practices. Additionally, in this study contributes how HR and partnership practices influence on labour conflicts and employee attitudes and behaviours. HR and partnership practices not only impair labour conflicts but also enhance employee attitudes and behaviours.

1.2 Research objectives

Labour conflict is a common issue faced by organizations not only in the ASEAN region but also globally. It significantly affects overall employee productivity and can impair not only workplace efficiency but also damage employee's commitment and behaviours. Consequently, the organization is require to implement appropriate practices in order to reduce conflicts and maintain positive employee attitudes and behaviours. In this study human resources and partnership practices play essential roles in managing labour conflicts and fostering effective employee commitment and engagement. Main research objective for this study is to examine the relationship between human resource practices and labour conflicts in specific countries in ASEAN region.

1.3 Research Questions

For this study, research questions adept focuses on labour conflicts, conflicts managing approaches such as HR and partnership practices and how this practice and conflicts impact employee attitude and behaviours in specific ASEAN countries. In this research develop one main research question and three sub-questions.

1.3.1 Main research question:

1. How do human resource management and partnership practices influence employee attitude and behaviours toward labour conflicts.

1.3.2 Sub research questions:

- 1. Do employee relations and partnership practices impact labour conflicts.
- 2. Do employee relations and partnership practices impact employee attitude and behaviours.
- 3. Do workplace conflicts impact employee attitude and behaviours.

1.4 Justification for research

Due to the progress of economics growth, unstable political issues, limited opportunities, and potential higher salary than working in Myanmar, many low and high skills workers are from Myanmar migrate to the other countries. most of low skills workers move to work in Thailand and Malaysia where is neighbour countries from Myanmar. Also called the compound area in the ASEAN region. According to ILO data over 1,400,000 labours migrate in Thailand and over 300,000 labours migrate in Malaysia (ILO,2020). Most of low skills labours migrate using oversea employment agency, which is recognized by Myanmar oversea Employment Agencies Federation (MOEAF). Many of labour working in these countries with Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) contract between Myanmar government and Thai government since 2003. However, MOU contract working in Malaysia was suspended in 2024 according to Myanmar Labour News (MLN,2024). Although, local employment law to protect and complain workers cases in these countries, employees are still facing many challenging related to interests, right and affect based conflicts due to the language skills both local language and English language, unfamiliar of the local systems and lack of knowledge which is related right and many more issues within the workplace in Thailand and Malaysia. In Myanmar many local labours are facing regarding long working hours, unfair overtime pays, lack of participation within the workplace, poor health & safety systems and lack of benefits and low minimum wages compared with Thailand and Malaysia Kyi (2018). These challenges makes increase workplace conflicts and consequently negatively impact on employee attitudes and behaviours.

There are various ways to manage workplace conflicts including formal and informal methods. Formal resolutions is undergoing mediation processes and third-party involvement, this is the most common methods to managing conflicts within the workplace (Martinez-Pecino et al.,2008). However, both employees and employers' point of view, workplace require to prevent the situations occurring conflicts, formal resolution is usually after conflicts resolution methods, and it cannot prevent happening conflicts (Zeller & Trakman, 2019). In this study, I considered employing informal workplace resolutions that address suitable strategies for aligning both employees and employers. Human resource and partnership practices in the workplace enhance the interests and attentions of employees and employers (Guest & Peccei, 2001). In this study, many Myanmar national labours are experiencing lack of workplace interests, rights, commitment, and satisfaction with many reasons. Human resource and partnership practices have been shown to positively address and improve these issues experienced by employees. These practices describe not only promoting collaborations in the workplace but also achieving the organization goal and it can significantly reduce workplace conflicts (Guest & Peccei, 2001). These practices can turnout win - win results both employees and employers, it can enhance overall workplace productivity and positive outcome to employees' attitudes and behaviours (Guest & Peccei, 2001).

Understanding of human resource and partnership practices positively impact on workplace especially in workplace conflicts, it can help not only provide overall effective employee management but also can help reduce workplace conflicts and improve employee commitment and satisfaction. By employing this gap, this dissertation will get beneficial empirical data, practical and theoretical recommendations, and discourse on significantly reduce both collective and individual conflicts in workplace toward effective employee attitudes and behaviours.

1.5 Profile of the country

In this study, focused on the ASEAN region, particularly on Myanmar national migrant workers employed in neighbouring countries such as Thailand and Malaysia. The survey targets for Myanmar national workers who are employing for manufacturing factory in local

Myanmar and Thailand and Malaysia. Detailed country profile and background information are presented in the Methodology section, title 3.4.

1.6 Summary of chapter

Partnership practices in human resource management is a crucial role for managing workplace conflicts. According to scholars' and previous studies, partnership practices can significantly reduce workplace conflicts and directly enhance employee attitudes and behaviours. This study aims to develop a strong concept of labour conflicts and employee attitudes and behaviours by addressing HR and partnership practices. This finding will be applicable to various types of organizations, not only in the ASEAN region but also globally.

1.7 Research structure

This research is structured into five chapters. Each chapter presents specific themes and explains different areas related to the study. In chapter two, reviewed and discussed relevant literature, focusing on various types of workplace conflicts; individual conflicts, collective conflicts including interests, right and affect and fundamental power-based conflicts in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. In chapter three, I discussed methodological aspects for this study providing detailed research questions and objectives. It was explained the chosen methodological approach, including both quantitative and qualitative methods, respondent's countries profiles, data collection and analysis methods, gaining access, informants and recruitment and ethical consideration for this dissertation. In chapter four, I presented the analysis of the collected data, including Cronbach's alpha result, descriptive statistics both demographics and main variables, correlation matrix between each variable and regression analysis to test the hypotheses. In chapter five, provided discussion, recommendation based on the findings. This chapter includes the main findings sections, a review of the findings, discussion, theoretical implications and practical implications, recommendation, limitations, and ethical considerations. Moreover, this chapter concluded with an overall summary of research and Personal Learning Reflective Essay (CIPD requirement).

Chapter 2: Literature Review

2.1 Introduction

This paper examines labour conflict based on individual and collective issues, focusing on interests based, rights based and affect based conflicts within the workplace. In this research, conflict management strategies address human resource practices, particularly partnership practices in employee relations. Firstly, analyse how human resource practices manage labour

conflicts and explore their positive impact on employee attitude and behaviours. Additionally, examine how workplace conflicts can negatively impact employee attitude and behaviours. This research focus on exploring the impact of HRM practices on labour conflict within the ASEAN region, with particular emphasis in Myanmar (formerly called Burma), Thailand and Malaysia. In this research, examine labour conflict among Myanmar national migrant workers, particularly those employing for manufacturing factories in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia.

Workplace conflicts are an unavoidable issue between employers and employees. Nowadays, many Myanmar national migrant workers are facing workplace conflicts problems due to the lack of interests, rights, and power unbalance issue not only in Myanmar but also in Thailand and Malaysia. These conflicts often arise from the issue of unfair pay, poor management and arranging working environment, working hours and overtime pay, terminations the contract, workplace discrimination, and lack of employment law enforcement. Conflict is an intrinsic aspect not only for the workplace but also for other communities. Some of the conflicts may be seen as beneficial, or driven by a pursuit of justice, and every type of conflict can be harmful. According to Ridley-Duff and Bennet (2011), serval reasons can lead into workplace conflicts, including organization changes their strategy, policies and implements new policies or structure without prior notice with the employees and involves their concern or agreement. These actions can lead to various effects on employee relations and may enhance many negative consequences within the workplace both overt and covert (Bennett, 2013). In this case, Bennett (2013) recommends organizations require to address strategy or reasonable approaches to handle the conflicts, as well as "downward communication", it means organization or management are significantly inform their employees individually or group about any policies or plans changes. The most crucial aspects of addressing approaches or strategies depend on the types of disputes, and the nature of the conflicts between employees and employers. Conflict management style or approaches can be based on the specific conflicts and the perceptions of both parties. Other potential cause of conflicts within the workplace, include poor management systems, lack of opportunities and promotion, and inadequate focus on employee's development and progress, additionally some personal relationship between employees and management or employers (Watson, 2006).

Labour relations entail an economic exchange between employee and employers, it means employees sell their load of work and employers compensate money for that (Snape and Redman, 2004:2007). Additionally, labour relations management involves collaboration with

third-party organizations, including trade unions or labour representatives when managing labour conflicts (Xi et al 2022). However, since the 1980s, with the emergence and development of human resource management and alongside a decline in third party involvements in certain countries, there has been a gradual shift in labour conflicts management toward employee relations (Schuler, 1989). Gallagher (2011) mentioned that the management of employee relations in labour conflicts, HRM may play a greater role than the third-party involvement. Scholars developed serval strategies and approaches for handling conflicts, such as third-party participation, mediation, and collective bargaining, these approaches and practices can address not only labour conflicts but also every type of workplace conflicts (Guest & Peccei 2001). However, Scheuer (2006) expressed organizational structure and practices can be changed based on the conflicts, it will need to develop new conflicts management styles and practices.

There are many internal conflicts resolution methods. Many articles and scholars mentioned that the partnership practices focus on mutual, respects, trust, shared versions and improve communication and avoid centralized decision making between employee and employers (Guest & Peccei 2001). Partnership practices not only improve mutual, respect and shared versions between employees and employers but also improve collaboration between both parties (Xi et al., 2017). That is why partnership practices can be fit to address in conflicts management based on theorical background (Xi et al., 2017).

2.2 Individual conflicts

In this paper will be divided into three types of labour conflicts which are interest-based conflict, right-based conflicts and affect-based conflicts and additionally will add power-based conflicts. Firstly, the criteria used to classify the two earlier labour conflicts ignores the concept of humans as inherently social beings (Uusitalo,1989), it means that the workplace conflicts are not only based on social exchanges but can also involve economic exchanges. According to the international journal of HRM (2021), the relationship between employer and employees should be characterized by mutual respect and responsibility, shared values and rational decision making. From a human resource point of view all employees regardless of their status work together toward a shared object. In this perspective, focus on collaboration and collective effort to achieve organization goals.

Secondly, since the two conflicts right based and affect based usually focus on internal and external collective bargaining, and both conflicts are categorized as overt or openly visible workplace conflicts. However, affective conflict is also one of the unavoidable and integral aspects of individual workplace conflicts, this conflict is often manifesting as covert or implicit disagreement (Budd et al.,2020). For instance, employees may experience physical or emotional exhaustion, they may get a lack of motivation within their work. Additionally, employees may suffer a lack of productivity or effectiveness in incompletion tasks, which can result from various negative factors within the workplace such as inadequate resources, poor management, or lack of employee engagement (Maslach et al., 2001). Individual workplace conflict can be mixed into collective conflicts due to the power imbalance inherent in individual employment relationships (Xi et al., 2017).

Finally, the relationship between employees and employers involves more than just the employment contract, which includes salary, job specification and any other term and condition (Marrison & Robinson, 1997). It also includes the psychological contract, which encompasses the beliefs and expectations each party has about the other. Psychological contracts involve employee's belief about their job security, how employer's support for career development and training, respect for employees and fair treatment (Xi and Zhao, 2014). In specific explaining, there have some consequence of negative effect if the employer breaches of the workplace psychological contract, it will lead not only implicit conflicts but also include counterproductive activities which is employee cannot focus their duties or responsivities and bad engaging intentionally to organization, employees absentee without specific reasons, high turnover rate and many more bad behaviours happen within the workplace (Xi and Zhao, 2014). Those behaviours can directly impact organization behaviours and can have big impact on both employees and employers' productivity (Meng Xi et al, 2021). Thus, affect based conflicts also included one of the crucial and important parts of individual conflicts within the workplace.

In general, this paper defines workplace conflicts usually identified by conflicting behaviours, styles and irreconcilable emotions based on interest, rights and affects based between employees and employers. In addition, this research will develop employee relations conflicts into three categories: interest-based, right-based, and affects-based conflicts. According to Martinez-Pecino et al (2008), interest-based workplace conflicts and right based workplace conflicts are consistent with those definitions. Interest based workplace conflicts typically arise from the perceptions and expectations of employees and employers regarding the employment

contract, such as salary and benefits, as mentioned in the above paragraph. For example, salarybased conflicts occur when employees receive lower wages than the minimum scales, lack salary progression or facing inadequate pay scales within the workplace. These issues directly contribute to workplace conflicts between employees and employers. Other benefits situations where employers neglect to provide paid leave, incentives (both intrinsic and extrinsic rewards), accommodation, and other social welfare contributions. On the other hand, some production factories create unsafe workplaces to reduce production costs, resulting in high temperature, noise and dust which directly impact employee health and safety. This issue is prevalent in some Southeast Asian regions particularly in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. Workplace rights-based conflicts refer to issues arising from individual needs or experiences regarding inadequate employment laws and contract regulations. These conflicts typically occur when employers fail to comply with established procedures within the workplace. For example, there are serval factories experienced labour strike during the first wave of Covid-19 in some Southeast Asia regions including Myanmar and Thailand. These strikes occurred due to the companies failing to provide adequate employee health and safety measures, such as providing gloves, face sheets, and safety workplace setting as recognized by the Ministry of Health and Safety. According to the occupational safety and health law and employment contract regulation, employers must provide a safe workplace and employees right to speak out if employer fail to provide or lack of their responsibility (ILO, 2019).

Affect-based conflicts also encompass individual needs or experiences related to employer's lack of disrespectful actions towards employees affecting their dignity both physically and mentally. For instance, in a factory and manufacturing setting, employers often force to do to get their daily or weekly production targets regardless of employee's conditions and difficulties. These practices can have significant effects on employee's both mentally and physically, ultimately leading to high workplace turnover rates and low employee morale.

2.3 Collective conflicts

Collective conflicts are an unavoidable aspect of organizational life. These conflicts arise from differences in rights and interests among employees, employers, and management not only within the workplace but also in every society including public institutions and agencies (Euwema et al, 2019). A dispute over interests that occurs between employees and employers can be an internal negotiable such as changing policies or procedure under collective agreement within the company. However, a dispute over the right needs to be interpreted according to

current employment law in the context of a collective agreement, this process can involve third parties' communication and assisting (Euwema et al, 2019).

In this paragraph, will represent third parties are involved in collective conflicts and how they are facilitating the process between employees and employers (Martin et al, 2019). Any form of conflicts involving individuals or groups, at least one party feels aggrieved or impeded by the actions of the other party (Elgoibar et al, 2017). According to the scholars, all countries have employment laws, and third-party organizations such as labour activists, trade unions and internal employee representatives to protect employees during dispute. Nowadays, in many countries around the world employees have the right to strike and defend mutual interests between their employers. However, there are some restrictions depending on the country (Martin et al, 2019). For example, employee strikes are usually organized or coordinated by recognized organizations such as trade unions or employee representative organizations. (Martin et al, 2019). In this case, trade unions play a crucial role in handling the case, as there are only a few functional labour lawyers. Generally, organizations or society implement legal regulations to find the solution and resolve the problem without causing harm. In this part of conflict resolution may involve third parties' communication such as trade union, and arbitrations.

As part of general process and regulations, third party organizations claim with labour courts or departments, and these courts make the final decision on the case, this is the way of traditional methods and formal resolution of collective conflicts (Euwema et al, 2019). There are some alternative informal resolution methods for collective conflicts, in this scenario, employee relations which is entitle under human resource department will be the main players handling the case using the practices, approaches and strategy as well as partnership practices within the workplace. There are many benefits to using informal resolution methods, these case not only facilitate mediation in get mutual agreement without hostility in workplace or within a group of team but also have the potential to improve and positively influence employees' attitude and behaviours.

2.4 Right, Interests and Power based in Conflicts

When an employee joins an organization, regardless of their position, they all are expected to demonstrate a certain level of commitment to the company's interests. During the hiring process, the HR department usually arranges for new employees to sign an agreement regarding

workplace conflicts. This agreement usually requires employees to avoid or disclose any situations that may arise conflicts within the workplace, not only interest-based conflicts but also right-based conflicts. Normally, every organization has an employee handbook and where mentioned detailed sections which are related workplace conflicts, how employees will undergo, and claim workplace conflicts happen. This information is typically adhered to ethical standards and maintaining transparency within the workplace. Anyone at the organization, regardless of their positions, may encounter conflicts of interest, especially when they don't perceive or hold different interests, these conflicts can directly impact employee's productivity and cause delay in organizational processes and overall workload.

According to the workplace dispute, industrial relations scholars have identified two main categories of workplace conflicts, which are right-based conflicts and effect-based conflicts. Conflicts of interest commonly arise during negotiations for a collective contract, regarding salary, unfair policies, employment perks and working conditions (Meng Xi et al, 2021). Right-based conflicts occur when the employees face violations of employment rules and contractual terms (Meng Xi et al, 2021). For example, employers did not employ contracts rules based on employment law and failing to provide minimum wage, proper leave benefits including annual, causal and medical, lack of employees' rights or obligations, and improperly deducting wages without entitlement (Meng xi et al 2021). According to workplace culture, the main difference between these two conflicts depends on how the employers provide and prepare the contract, the employment contract must be clear and understandable to prevent each conflict.

Additionally, power-based conflicts refer to an imbalance of power between employees and employers, which can lead to both constructive and destructive within the workplace (Hocker and Wilmot (1995). This is a serious and challenging issue and may cause corruption problems in the workplace (Hocker and Wilmot (1995). There are serval recommendations for handling power-based conflicts, including power-sharing theory. This practice requires both parties to discuss openly their identity and power dynamics (Folger et al,2005).

2.5 Human Resource and Employee Relations in conflict Management

Human Resource Management plays a crucial role in the organization and significantly contributes to the organization's business and overall management processes (Armstrong,2006). It is typically concerned with organization processes but also focuses on employee interests. HR practices also play a crucial role in aligning strategy with the culture

among employers and employees including management. This involves integrating individuals who are committed to the strategy, who will follow up or adapt it, and who will fit with this culture and policies (Purcell et al, 2003). According to Armstrong (2006) human resource management (HRM) has significantly evolved from traditional personnel management. Nowadays, personnel management has been largely replaced by human resource management. Normally these two titles are similarly same, but there are some differences between HRM practices and personnel management within the organization. Similarly, both are adept at aligning with business strategy, facilitating line managerial communication and support, developing employees, and providing training, and handling recruiting and selection. In contrast, HR management and practices focus more strategically (Armstrong, 2006).

All processes are management-based with a greater emphasis on organizational culture, diversity, and the commitment to achievement by both employees and employers. And HR professionals can take the role of business partners instead of handling personnel administration (Armstrong, 2006). There are serval activities in human resource management and practices including organizational design and development, resourcing and human resource planning, HR development as well as learning both organizational and individual, reward and compensation management, and employee relations management. In this research, focuses on the significance of employee relations in workplace conflicts and explores effective strategies and approaches for managing these conflicts. Employee relations refer to the creation and maintenance of relationships between management, employers, employees, and third-party organizations, particularly when conflicts or mutual disagreements arise within the workplace (Armstrong, 2006).

There are numerous resolutions styles, which include not only formal and informal ways but also implementation of reasonable strategies and approaches (Armstrong, 2006). Formal resolution means direct communication with trade unions, third party' organizations, labour courts and arbitration committees. Informal resolution refers to dealing with conflict internally as individually or group of the members between management and employers. In this scenario, human resource management and their approaches are crucial in handling the issue impartially. One of the roles of HR activities in conflicts is providing guidance and training within the workplace. On the other hand, the human resource functions can improve and address some negative practices between employees and employers by identifying the problem and issue, and determining the skills and competency, providing training or consultation to create more

effective workplace (Gilin Oore et al, 2015). There are no special policies recommended for handling the case of employee relations, each organization can create the own policy or choice the approaches based on circumstance of organization, management values and traditional procedures and practices (Armstrong, 2006). Which practices fit their organization and nature of goal and custom, organizational structure and the perceptions of both employee and employers.

Although there are various perspectives and points of views in employee relations according to Armstrong. Firstly, it's called unitary point of view, the management and employees believe and share their interests in the same goal and along together onto the organization goal. For example, using social partnership practices as well as open communication style and sharing the mission and the goal of the organization and addressing employee development programs such as providing the training and career development platform. Secondly, pluralist point of view, pluralist perspective mean, the organization employs diverse interests which is different kind of interest in different group and background. For example, in a production factory, the management might work with not only labour representative but also with among of the third party to negotiate employment relations issues, in this case all parties need to involve and able to present their voice and opinions (Armstrong, 2006).

There are several approaches in employee relations recommended by Armstrong and Taylor (2006), including adversarial corporation, traditional methods, power sharing practices, and partnership practices. This research focuses on partnership practices in employee relations and examines the consequences of these practices into workplace conflicts, and how they impact or change and influence employee attitude and behaviours.

2.6 Partnership practices

Partnership practices in the workplace typically focus on trust, mutual respect, and shared version and organizations should avoid centralization in decision making and promote open communication between employees and employers (Guest & Peccei, 2001). Mutual respect and trust mean employers should treat each employee with dignity and engage in positive interactions. A shared version refers to both employees and employers having the same goal and missions to create an effective workplace and achieve organizational success. Communication is one of the important and unavoidable activities in partnership practices, both employer and employee should employ an open communication strategy and be involved in

the organizational decision-making process. Avoid centralization means recognizing that there are many roles in the workplace, instead of having control concentrated in person or management, employers or management should allow all members to contribute their input and participate in decision making related to their role in the workplace.

Many researchers shown that the benefits of addressing partnership practices in the workplace, these practices not only balance both employees and employers' mutual interests and rights based but also support to get mutual agreement in the workplace (Xi et al, 2017). That is why partnership practices may be fit to employ to handling workplace conflicts (Guest & Peccei,2001). Collective bargaining is one of the commonly used methods to address conflict resolutions within the workplace. This method serves as an alternative approach for resolution conflicts between employers and groups or individuals of employees. However third-party involvement in resolution always has its limitations, it means this resolution method may not always lead to a perfectly satisfactory resolution (Remington & Cui, 2015).

Furthermore, mediation and other forms of third parties' involvement in resolution are staged after the conflicts arise and it cannot prevent conflicts from happening in the first place (Zeller & Trakman, 2019). Nowadays, organizations are increasing the implementing and addressing partnership practices in workplace conflicts, which is attracting more attention. This approach may create participation between employers and employees, highly promote the organizational achievement and employees' success within their workplace, and enhancing employee productivity, and overall reducing turnover rate (Guest & Peccei, 2001).

According to Xi (2017), there are several recommended procedures in partnership practices, including employment security, communication, employee engagement and participation, and sharing benefits. These procedures have been extensively enhance employee attitude and behaviours, also can enhance employee productivity and create positive impact on workplace conflicts. For instance, in a manufacturing factory, if employees are well engaged with their management or their job, their contributions will lead to a good result, from the organization perspective, this will be a good outcome, that why partnership practices create win and win situations for both employees and employers, consistently contribute a good impact to organizational activities and mission, finally it can directly decrease the employee relations conflicts (Xi et al 2017). Also, partnership practices can improve commitment between employee and employer, and lead to increase in organization's overall productivity (Guest &

Peccei,2001). Partnership practice can gain a benefit not only for employers' perspective but also for employee perspective, it can reduce employee's unfair pay policy, ensure reward and compensation based on their performance, and directly decrease turnover and absenteeism. For these reasons, partnership practices can decrease right based conflicts regarding employee's fair pay, compensation, and negative working environment.

According to the pluralist system everybody in the workplace has different interests and rights, partnership practices allow employee to engage in participatory organization activities such as third parties' representation, giving them a collective voice to advocate for their interests and rights (Provis, 1996). For these reasons, partnership practices can reduce not only interest-based conflicts but also manage employee rights-based conflicts, such as those related to regulations, procedures, and overtime benefits (Xi et al, 2017). According to Guest & Peccei, partnership practices also can fulfil psychological contracts in the workplace. For instance, the practices may enhance collaborative communication and improve decision making and promote mutual respect and trust and overall, it can reduce workplace conflicts between both parties (Guest & Peccei, 2001).

2.7 Employee Attitude and Behaviours

Every kind of workplace can negatively impact both employers and employees (Xi & Zhao, 2014). In this paper, examine workplace conflicts that can impact employees' attitude and behaviours using two sets of indicators. Firstly, indicate employee job satisfaction and commitment in their role in the workplace. Job satisfaction refers to the positive feelings or enjoyment that employees experience in their daily life at work (Cavanaugh et al, 2000). Commitment also is an important aspect of employee's attitudes and behaviours, indicating employees are positively emotionally attached to their organization or not (Meyer & Allen, 1991). Secondly, we will indicate from the point of organizational view, the conflicts will impact on counterproductive behaviour and employee turnover intentions (Xi et al, 2017).

Counterproductive behaviour refers to actions by employees that directly or indirectly obstruct the achievement of organization goals and missions. This behaviour can harm not only the organization but also other employees in the workplace (Spector & Fox,2002). For example, in the workplace both parties may have conflicting affect based on their job roles or dissatisfaction with their roles. Additionally, a poor working environment, such as management or employers not considering employee productivity and workload, may lead to overwork and

burnout. In this situation, the organization needs specific practices or approaches to manage the issue. If the issue is not addressed promptly, it may lead to counterproductive behaviour among employees.

Turnover means typically employees leaving the organization, and they are likely looking for other opportunities and considering to resign with many reasons. In this situation, organizations need to be aware and protect from losing their competency employees (Xi et al 2017). For instance, in manufacturing operator or every kind of business sectors, if there having high turnover rate, it can be directly impact not only losing valuable employee for work but also impact workplace productivities and overall organizational behaviours. Social information and theory suggest that people can change their attitudes and behaviours based on their beliefs and social context (Salanicik & Pfeffer, 1978). Labour conflicts in organizations can be seen as part of the social environment because this social context shape employee's attitude and behaviours and their interactions (Xi et al, 2017). Furthermore, employees' perceptions, experiences and observations of workplace conflicts influence their attitude and behaviours. This study focuses on the impact of workplace conflicts on employee attitudes and behaviours, particularly in work commitment, job satisfaction, and employee turnover intentions.

To extend and logically address the research questions and research objectives, three hypotheses are developed as follows.

Hypothesis 1: Partnership practices can reduce labour conflicts.

Hypothesis 1.a: Partnership practices can reduce interest-based conflicts.

Hypothesis 1.b: Partnership practices can reduce right-based conflicts.

Hypothesis 1.c: Partnership practices can reduce affect-based conflicts.

Hypothesis 2: Partnership practices positively impact employee attitude and behaviours.

Hypothesis 2.a: Partnership practices positively impact on employee commitment.

Hypothesis 2.b: Partnership practices positively impact on employee Satisfaction.

Hypothesis 2.c: Partnership practices positively impact on employee turnover.

Hypothesis 3: Workplace conflicts impact employee attitude and behaviours.

2.8 Conclusion

This literature review explored the current research relationship between employee and employers. Focusing on workplace issue, human resource management practices and employee attitude and behaviours in manufacturing industries in the ASEAN region, especially in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. This existing body of literature review discussed complex issues related to workplace relationships and conflicts from both positive and negative perspectives. Firstly, this study consistently identifies types of conflicts within the workplace, including individual and collective conflicts. Secondly, identify the methods of conflicts resolution, including formal and informal approaches. Additionally, pinpoint human resource and employee relations approaches which can effectively manage workplace conflicts, particularly through the implementation of partnership practices. Finally, exploring the relationship between workplace conflicts, partnership practices and employee attitude and behaviours. How workplace conflicts impact employee attitude and behaviours and how employee attitude and behaviours can change organization after addressing partnership practices.

This research determine serval types of conflicts in the workplace and examined both formal and informal conflicts managing approaches. Labour conflicts are quite complex situations, and only a few researchers focus on this area, especially in Southeast Asian countries. I aim to address and fill the gap in understanding how labour are struggling with the lack of protection for their interests and rights in their daily workplaces in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. In this research I aim to conduct comprehensive and methodologically study to explore the relationship between human resource management practices, employee attitude and behaviours and labour conflicts.

Chapter 3: Methodology

3.1 Introduction

In these days of rapidly growing the local economy in the ASEAN region, including Thailand and Malaysia, there is a strong demand for migrant workers across various industries. However, alongside this growth, employee relations issues have been emerging in the workplace due to the poor work places and conditions and inadequate employee benefits and many more other related concerns. In this research, effective workplace conflict management is crucial for ensuring workplace productivity, employee attitude and behaviours. The gain insight into workplace conflicts management, human resource practices and employee attitudes and behaviours and to answer the research questions, there are serval activities will be carried out in this study. There are numerous data collection approaches employed by researchers for

management and social science field, however, only quantitative, and qualitative methods being the most employed. In this chapter, I aim to explore the available research methods and identify the most suitable data collection approach for this research.

The main research questions for this study will be shown as follows:

1. How do human resource management and partnership practices influence employee attitude and behaviours toward labour conflicts.

The main research objectives for this study will be shown as follows:

- 1. To identify how human resource management and partnership practices influence on managing and handling of labour conflicts in the ASEAN region.
- 2. To examine how human resource management and partnership practices influence to employee attitude and behaviours toward conflicts.
- 3. To analyze the impact of workplace conflicts on employee attitude and behaviours.
- 4. To understand the relationship between HRM and partnership practices and labour conflicts.

3.2 Methodological approach

A methodological approach is a crucial part in the research industry. It means how researchers plan to answer their research questions, specifying how they intend to collect and analyse the data. We need to clarify the research methodological approaches before analysing future research processes and coherence our research project. In the academic industry, there are two primary research approaches, quantitative and qualitative. However, some researchers adopt mixed methods, combining both quantitative and qualitative approaches (Saunders et al, 2015). The quantitative method involves collecting data through making questionnaires by survey method and analysing the data using graphs and statistics. This approach always generates numerical data. Qualitative methods also involve data collection processes such as interviews through phone or in person, and collecting survey data, however this approach typically generates or uses non-numerical data (Saunders et al, 2015). Here is a more detailed explanation of the difference between quantitative and qualitative research approaches.

3.2.1 Quantitative approach

The quantitative approach is typically associated with positivism, especially when researchers employ predetermined and highly structured data collection techniques. This approach often includes controls for data validity, and experimental design. And ensuring that the questions

posed are clear and understandable to each participant (Saunders et al, 2015). Conversely, this approach focuses on applying statistical and computational methods combining, analysing and interpreting the data. For data analysis processes includes testing consistency of the survey questions, descriptive statistics, finding correlations each variables, regression analysis using appropriate tools as well as SPSS or other analysis software.

3.2.2 Qualitative approach

Qualitative approach is typically associated with interpretive philosophy. This approach uses a single data collection style such as making semi-structure interviews, and corresponding qualitative analytical procedures. According to Saunders et al (2015), qualitative research method associated with serval strategies and each strategy has specific scope and procedures. It includes making case study research based, grounded theory, ethnography and narrative research. Additionally, this research explores complex phenomena and aims to gain in-depth understanding. This method is valuable for exploring experiences, feelings and beliefs, but it is not suitable for this study due to the need for large scale data sampling across multiple countries.

3.3 Choosing approach

There are several reasons for adopting the quantitative method in this research, including replicability, efficiency, contributing to academic setting with empirical analysis. Furthermore, it can investigate numerous variables, and test different hypotheses simultaneously. Cross-sectional studies allow for the collecting of extensive information and a cost-effective method of conducting research. While this type of research is considered a strong alternative to experimental research, it has limitations. Unlike cross-sectional research and experimental design research cannot establish causation and does not provide precise control over variables (Rindfleisch et al., 2008). This method can use large sample sizes, enhance the research's power and enable observation of significant impacts. An online survey is much more convenient for collecting data and information relatively easy and quick, especially compared to interviews conducted over the phone, online platforms, or face to face.

3.4 Countries' profile

Targeted data collected for this study involves three main countries in ASEAN regions, particularly in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia.

Myanmar

New patterns of internal migration are emerging due to substantial changes within the country. The expansion of industrial zones, and the development of new special economic zones, has led to increased manufacturing opportunities nationwide. On the other hand, many local migrant workers are facing numerous challenges related to workplace relations practices and issues such as working environment, leaves, wages, unfair dismissal, and various employment laws matters (Eitra, 2017).

Thailand

Thailand is a business hub in Southeast Asia with a rapidly growing economy which have been offering opportunities in various sectors, including manufacturing for workers from neighbouring countries, especially Myanmar, Cambodia, Laos, and Vietnam. Workers can earn higher salaries in Thailand than their home countries. However, many international migrants face challenges related to working conditions and poor working management, assigning long hours shifts, limited benefits such as leaves and local employment rules (Chantavanich and Jayagupta, 2010).

Malaysia

Malaysia is one of the stable economic countries in Southeast Asia with a long history. It also attracts migrant workers seeking more stable job opportunities with higher salaries compared to their home countries. The country consistently faces shortages of local workers, and prompting employers to welcome migrant labour to meet local workforce needs across various sectors, including manufacturing industries. Migrant workers in Malaysia, including Myanmar nationals, face significant challenges such as discrimination based on status and nationality, as well as limited benefits similar situation in Thailand (Abubakar, 2002).

3.5 Data collecting

In this study, I adopt quantitative methods to analyse the labour conflicts and human resource practices in the ASEAN regions, particularly with empirical analysis. The research sample size determined using Cochran's (1977) method, with a precision level of plus or minus 8 percent, a confidence level serves 95 percent and estimated proportion of 0.5. Given this combination of variability and precision and confidence the appropriate sample size is 151. The survey questionnaire is cross sectional, which means it allows researchers to explore how variables measured simultaneously are related to each other (Meyer et al.,2021). There are many data

collection methods in quantitative study, including cross sectional, experimental and longitudinal designs, which were considered for conducting quantitative analysis. Using the cross-sectional method and a large sample size in the survey, examine all variables measured at one specific moment (Cummings, 2017). There are ways to collect survey data, including online platform, postal, face to face and telephone interviewing methods. Among these, online survey system is particularly beneficial compared to other methods, it saves participants' time, offers free access, and enables the collection of large samples within a short period (Evans and Mathur, 2005).

Primary data collected using survey questionnaires from Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. Furthermore, the targeted population focus on Myanmar national migrant workers currently working for manufacturing industries as operators and supervisors and regardless of their positions from those countries. All targeted Myanmar national migrant workers are legally working these countries under a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) contract between their government and the host governments. Secondary data collect news, articles and previous study. The survey collecting period conduct 10 working days starting from June 17, 2024 to June 28, 2024. According to hypothesis one, human resources management and partnership practices serve as independent variables, when labour conflicts serve as dependent variables. In hypothesis two, human resource management and partnership practices serve as independent variables and employee attitude and behaviours serve as dependent variables. In hypothesis three, workplace conflicts serve as independent variables and employee attitudes and behaviours serve as dependent variables.

3.6 Gaining access

The objective of this research is to define the view of Myanmar national migrant workers who are currently employed in manufacturing factories in selected ASEAN countries, specifically Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. To facilitate data processing, information was shared with various manufacturing factories by contacting the human resource department in those specific countries. The information was shared via E-mail, WeChat, and WhatsApp.

3.7 Informants and recruitment

The targeted recruitment of this study is only migrant labour from those specific countries in ASEAN regions. There are several reasons I chose to collect data from those specific countries, including their high levels of migration. According to the International Labour Organization

(ILO) news, over two million Myanmar national have migrated abroad. Of these, over 70 percent are working in Thailand, and 15 percent in Malaysia (ILO, 2020). Many migrant workers face daily challenges related to workplace benefits, lack of support by employers and local employment policy.

3.8 Ethical considerations

I provided a comprehensive title and explained all information about the purpose of research and detailed procedure for participants and rights of participants. Before processing the data answering process, it requires participant's approval. Also, informed consent mentioned this is only voluntary and participants can withdraw at any time and moment without any reaction. In this data research, the privacy and confidentiality of all participants will be strictly protected throughout the study. To respect confidentiality and protect all the participant's data, I won't record the participants' name and personal data, instead of that I will use unique codes for my entire thesis. All the data will be restored securely in my private computer and only the college research teams access the data only for academic purposes.

3.9 Data Analysis

The survey is conducted online based using Kobotoolbox which is a data collection tool that researchers can use to create online or offline forms for collecting and managing data. The data transferred from kobotoolbox into excel which is shown by number. The survey has four main sections, with 22 questions: (1) respondent experience of labour conflicts, (2) employee relations and partnership practices, (3) employee attitude and behaviours, and (4) respondent's demographic information. All items described using 5 Likert scales starting from Always, Often, Sometimes, Rarely and Never except for salary and demographic factors. The salary in the survey question recorded in local currency, however, is converted into Euro when interpreting the result. Moreover, Cronbach's alpha test is conducted to trace internal consistency of survey questions. The Alpha test was developed by Lee Cronbach to measure the internal consistency of a scale or test which is measured as a number between 0 to 1. Ensuring internal consistency is essential for validating a test in research (Tavakol and Dennick., 2011). But bear in mind, a high coefficient does not always indicate high internal consistency. It can be affected by the length of the test. If the test is short, the alpha value is reduced. Inversely, if the test variables are highly correlated, when the alpha value is increased (Streiner., 2003).

In this study, the data analysis conduct employing SPSS software to perform correlation and comparison tests. SPSS is facilitates univariate, bivariate, and multivariate analyses, allowing users to apply both nonparametric and parametric techniques (Ong and Puteh,2017). In this study, univariate comparison analysis explores the difference between independent and dependent variables. Descriptive statistical methods including means, medians, standard deviations, and correlation coefficient were utilized. The correlation coefficient measures the relationship between two variables, ranging from +1 (prefect positive correlation) to –1 (perfect negative correlation), with 0 indicating no correlation. According to Schober et al. (2018), the correlation coefficient (r) is interpreted as follows: negligible correlation (0.00 to 0.10), weak correlation (0.10 to 0.39), moderate correlation (0.40 to 0.69), strong correlation (0.70 to 0.89), and very strong correlation (0.90 to 1.00). Furthermore, regression analysis was conducted to address all research questions, therefore, this research's finding proves that the based on empirical analysis.

Measured labour conflicts with six questions based on their salary, legal rights, emotional trust & respect between employees and employers. For human resource practices and partnership practices measured based on eight dimensions questions based on employee's participation in decision making process, third party role in legal sections, rewards, employee feedback and opinions, compensation and benefits, training providing for internal career progress, employment security and bonus based on employer's profits. For employee attitudes and behaviours measured three questions based on employee affective commitment and job satisfaction. There are five demographic factors given including participant's gender, education, age, position, and workplace location.

3.10 Conclusion

In this research, investigate relationship workplace conflicts issues, human resource practices and employee attitudes and behaviours between employees and employers. To gain this research, I employ quantitative methods and collect the data from the ASEAN countries, particularly in Myanmar, Thailand and Malaysia. This methodology provides a comprehensive understanding of the phenomena by incorporating both statistical analysis and personal perspectives. In the quantitative part involved a structured survey from Myanmar national migrant workers who currently working for the manufacturing in specific countries in ASEAN regions. Statistical analysis involves findings the regression and correlations matrix each dependent variables and independent variables. For ethical considerations also were conducted

carefully, including obtaining informed consent form to all participants and talking measures to ensure confidentiality and data security throughout the dissertation.

Overall, this methodology used in this study contributes a solid foundation for understanding the complex relationship between employee and employers, addressing human resources management and partnership practices in conflict management. Finally this study demonstrate how human resources and partnership practices and workplace conflicts influence on employee attitudes and behaviours. Future research builds on this finding, exploring additional variables and employing more diverse samples to further validate and extend our conclusions.

Consent Form

I sent out the consent form and survey questionnaires after obtaining approval from my thesis supervisor to all participants. The consent form is at the top of the survey form, and participants are required to agree (Yes) before they proceed to the next step. In the consent form, I explained to the participants that filling out these survey questionnaires is voluntary for my academic purpose, and they feel free to withdraw at any time.

Chapter 4: Finding and Analysis

4.1 Introduction

In this study, examined the relationship between conflicts and partnership practices, and employee attitude and behaviours within the workplace in ASEAN regions, particularly on employees who are working in the manufacturing industries. In this chapter, there are presented five parts of analysis which includes demographic factors analysis, reliability analysis, descriptive statistics, coefficient, and regression analysis. Each collected set data was analysed for reliability score, which is presenting internal consistency of the survey questionnaires. Moreover, analysed descriptive statistics through mean, medians, standard deviations, and correlation coefficient to present reliability of the research. Finally, answered each hypothesis questions based on regression analysis results.

4.2 Demographic factor

In this section, discussed the demographic factors, included the respondent's gender, education, positions, and workplace locations. In summary, there have 152 respondents Myanmar nationals' migrant workers who are currently working various industries in the ASEAN region, particularly in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia.

4.2.1 Gender

The respondents are divided into two main gender groups which is female and male. The number of respondents is presented in table 1. According to the result in table 1, the percentage of female respondents who are working for manufacturing in Myanmar, Thailand and Malaysia is 90.8 %, while male respondents make up 9.2 %. The data result indicates that there are significantly fewer male workers compared to female workers.

Table 1. Gender

Sr. No.	Gender	No. of Respondents	Percentage
1.	Female	138	90.8
2.	Male	14	9.2
	Total	152	100.0

Source: Survey Data (July 2024).

4.2.2 Education

In these results, there are four different levels of education among all respondents, which included primary, secondary, bachelor's degree and master's degree and above. The respective number of respondents is presented in table 2.

According to table 2, respondents with a master's degree level education or above constitute the smallest group at 0.7%, while those with high school education make up the highest percentage at 56.6%. The second lowest percentage of respondents with primary education, which is 4.6 %. The percentage of respondents with secondary education is 25%, while the bachelor level of respondents is 13.2%. In general, the results show most respondents working in the manufacturing industry have secondary and high school level education.

Table 2. Education

Sr. No.	Education Level	No. of Respondents	Percentage
1.	Primary level	7	4.6
2.	Secondary level	38	25.0
3.	High school level	86	56.6
4.	Bachelor level	20	13.2
5.	Master and above level	1	.7
	Total	152	100.0

Source: Survey Data (July 2024)

4.2.3 Age

In the analysis, there are two age groups of respondents, which are between 18 and 29 and between 29 to 39. The number of respondents in each group is presented in Table 3 as follows.

According to Table 3, a larger proportion of young peoples are working in the manufacturing industry compared to the middle age group. Specifically, 64.5% of respondents are in the 18 to 29 age group, while 35.5% are in the 30 to 39 age group.

Table 3. Age

Sr. No	Age (Years)	No. of Respondents	Percentage
1.	Between 18 to 29	98	64.5
2.	Between 30 to 39	54	35.5
	Total	152	100.0

Source: Survey Data (July 2024)

4.2.4 Position

According to Table 4, the results show four different kinds of positions: worker, line leader, supervisor, and others. The number of respondents for each position is presented in Table 4. The worker position had the highest percentage of participated for this research, which is 88.2% in total. The supervisor positions constitute 1.3% of the respondents. Finally, the line leader and other positions have the same percentage of respondents, each representing 5.3%. In summary, most of the respondents for this study held worker positions. Consequently, many Myanmar national workers are likely to be employed not only locally but also in other neighboring countries such as Thailand and Malaysia for various reasons, including better salaries and lack of local opportunities in their hometowns or rural areas.

Table 4. Position

Sr. No.	Position	No. of Respondents	Percentage
1.	Worker	134	88.2
2.	Line leader	8	5.3
3.	Supervisor	2	1.3
4.	Others	8	5.3
	Total	152	100.0

Source: Survey Data (July 2024)

4.2.5 Workplace location

Based on analysis result, I focused Myanmar national workers across different countries in the ASEAN region, particularly Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. The number of respondents from each country is presented in Table 5. As per Table 5, most of respondents participated from Myanmar, presenting 67.1 % in total. The remaining percentage are from Thailand and Malaysia, with each country presenting 16.4%.

Table 5. Workplace location

Sr. No.	Country	No. of Respondents	Percentage
---------	---------	--------------------	------------

1.	Myanmar	102	67.1
2.	Thailand	25	16.4
3.	Malaysia	25	16.4
	Total	152	100.0

Source: Survey Data (July 2024)

4.3 Reliability Analysis

According to Table 6, three main variables were analysed to determine the internal consistency, reliability, and validity of the research questionnaire. In these results Cronbach's alpha scores were presented in Table 6. The results indicated that the Cronbach's alpha scores were lower than the standardization score due to participants being from different workplace location, environment, and employing practices, specifically Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. Consequently, the reliability analysis results were not consistent. However, this inconsistency would not significantly impact my empirical analysis and findings, and all regression and correlation results were significant. However, I removed the question that is below the standardization score based on factor analysis results. I explained the details of each variable's questionnaire structure and the reason for the inconsistency as follows.

Table 6. Cronbach's alpha result

Variables	Cronbach's Alpha	No. of Items	Cronbach's Alpha (After factor analysis)	No. Of Items (After factor analysis)
Labour Conflicts	.443	6	.443	6
Partnership Practices	.499	8	.647	5
Employee Attitude and Behaviours	.460	3	.460	3

Source: Survey Data (July 2024)

4.3.1 Labour conflicts

Based on Table 6, labour conflicts were assessed with six questions in total, with Cronbach's alpha result of 0.443. In this section, most respondents answered "Always" and "Often" for questions no.4, "Does your employer provide legally required social insurance?" and question no.6, "Does your current salary is below the minimum wages per month?". This is due to local employment laws requiring employers must address minimum wage policy and provide social insurance packages to prevent the risk of workplace injury and fundamental workplace dispute.

4.3.2 Partnership Practices

In accordance with Table 6, partnership practices were assessed with eight questions in total, with Cronbach's alpha result of 0.499. According to the principal component analysis results,

three survey questions scored were lower than 0.5: which was question 7 "Do you feel involved in decisions about your own work and interests?", question 8 "How important do you think the union is in maintaining your legal rights and interests?" and question 14 "Does your employer provide bonus based on their profit?" This inconsistency is attributed to respondents from different countries and employers' background practices. Thus, I removed these three erroneous questions when conducting regression analysis to answer the hypothesis questions in section 4.5. Moreover, Cronbach's alpha value increased to .647 after removing three erroneous questions, presented in table 6 (after factor analysis).

4.3.3 Employee Attitude and Behaviours

As the result of table 6, employee attitude and behaviours were assessed using three questions in total, resulting in a Cronbach's alpha of 0.460. The overall result score was low due to question no 17 in survey: "How are you likely to seek job opportunities outside of this organization within the next 3-6 months?", most of respondent answered, 'Never and Rarely'. Consequently, most migrant workers working in other countries cannot seek or change new jobs immediately for several reasons, including work permit status and language barriers.

4.4 Descriptive statistics

Table 7. Labour conflicts

No.	Statements	Scale	N	R	S	О	A	Mean	STD
1.	How often do you feel that your requests for support and help	Freq	2	7	33	69	41	3.92	.887
1.	are unmet by your employer?	%	1.3	4.6	21.7	45.4	27	3.92	
2.	How often do you feel about care, respect, and trust by your	Freq	4	8	52	38	50	3.80	1.04
employer?		%	2.6	5.3	3.2	25	32	3.80	1.04
2	Does your employer provide legally required paid vacation days?	Freq	46	5	11	15	75	3.44	1.77
<i>J</i> .		%	30.3	3.3	7.2	9.9	49.3		1.//
4.	Does your employer provide legally required social	Freq	0	3	1	5	143	4.89	.476
4.	insurance?	%	0	2	.7	3.3	94.1	4.09	.470
	Are you satisfied with the working conditions and 5. workplace safety provided by your employer?	Freq	5	2	42	45	58		
5.		%	3.3	1.3	27.6	29.6	38.2	3.98	1.00

Does your current salary is 6. below the minimum wages per	Freq	29	51	59	11	2			
6.	month?	%	19.1	33.6	38.8	7.2	1.3	2.38	.920
	Overall							3.73	1.01

Source: Survey data (July 2024). N = Never, R = Rarely, S = Sometimes, O = Often, A = Always.

According to table 7, the overall mean score for labour conflicts is 3.73, with a standard deviation is 1.01, which indicates that respondents nearly agreed that they experience several types of conflicts in their workplace. On the other hand, this research is based on comparisons, across different countries and practices, that is why the overall mean score is close to an agree and is considered reliable.

Based on the descriptive analysis results in Table 7, the individual mean for labour conflicts (question 1: employer's support and help) is 3.92, it means most respondents agreed. The individual standard deviation is 0.887, which was close to the 1, indicated that this question is low variation for this research. In this question, the lowest percentage of respondents who disagreed (answering Never) is 1.3%, while the highest percentage of respondents who strongly agreed (answering Often) is 43%. This means that employees often feel their requests for support are unmet by their employers or management.

In question no.2: employer's respect and care to employees, the individual mean of this question is 3.80 and the standard deviation is slightly over 1. However, statistically point of view, this question is still reliable for research. The lowest percentage of respondents who disagreed (answering Never) is 2.6%, while the highest percentage of respondents who strongly agreed (answering Always) is 32 %. This means that employees consistently feel cared and respected by their employers.

In question no.3: legally paid holiday, the individual mean for this question is 3.44 and standard deviation is slightly over 1. Statistically point of view, that the question is still reliable. The lowest percentage of respondents who disagreed (answering Rarely) is 3.3%, while the highest percentage of respondents who agreed (answering Always) is 49.3%. It means the employer provided paid holidays such as casual and annual leave in accordance with employment law. In question no.4: social security and insurance benefits, the individual mean is 4.89 (close to the maximum value), and standard deviation is 0.476. This result indicated that the most of

respondents selected the answer 'Always', because it is a legal requirement, employers have to provide social insurance for workplace safety.

In question no.5: the individual mean is 3.98 and standard deviation is exactly 1. Statistically point of view, that this result indicated reliable for research. For this question, the lowest respondent's percentage is 1.3%, while the highest respondent percentage is 38.2%. The result indicated that employees are always satisfied with the workplace provided by their employer. In question no.6: minimum salary pay skill in workplace; the individual mean is 2.38, while standard deviation is below 1. This results score indicates that the question is reliable for research. The lowest percentage of respondents is 1.3%, while the highest percentage of respondents is 38.8%. This result means that employees perceive their current salary as reasonable in relation to the minimum wages.

Table 8. Employee relations and partnership practices

No	Statements	Scale	N	R	S	О	A	Mean	STD
	Do you feel involved in	Freq	49	47	26	19	11		
1	decisions about your own work and interests?	%	32.2	30.9	17.1	12.5	7.2	2.31	1.25
	How important do you think the union is in maintaining	Freq	14	7	26	48	57		
2	your legal rights and interests?	%	9.2	4.6	17.1	31.6	37.5	3.83	1.24
	Do you receive additional compensation or incentives	Freq	24	29	31	25	43	3.22	
3	based on the individual or group performance?	%	15.8	19.1	20.4	16.4	28.3		1.44
4.	Does your employer seek your opinion and provide	Freq	13	39	49	28	23	3.05	1.18
4.	feedback?	%	8.6	25.7	32.2	18.4	15.1	3.03	
	Do you enjoy the vacations, retirement programs and	Freq	20	20	32	22	58		
5.	other benefits that your employer provided?	%	13.2	13.2	21.1	14.5	38.2	3.51	1.44
	Does your employer provide training programs to help	Freq	69	41	21	14	7		
6.	you to obtain a promotion within your department organization?	%	45.4	27	13.8	9.2	4.6	2.00	1.17

7	How would you rate the stability of your employment security?	Freq	8	5	18	66	55	4.01	1.04
/.		%	5.3	3.3	11.8	43.4	36.2	4.01	
o	Does your employer provide	Freq	106	30	11	3	2	1.45	.820
0.	a bonus based on their profit?	%	69.7	19.7	7.2	2	1.3	1.43	.620
	Overall							2.92	1.19

Source: Survey data (July 2024). N = Never, R = Rarely, S = Sometimes, O = Often, A = Always.

Based on table 8, the overall mean for partnership practices is 2.92, and standard deviation is 1.19. This result indicated that the most of respondents answered this question neutrally, due to different countries and employment practices in their workplace. However, with a standard deviation slightly over 1. Hence, the overall questions and the responses are still considered reliable for research.

In question no.1: participation in decision making, the individual mean is 2.31, with individual standard deviation is 1.25. This indicates that most respondents answered this question neutrally. Despite this, the question is skill considered reliable which is based on individual standard deviations result. The result indicates a significant portion of participants perceive low in decision making process within the workplace. For question no.2: union role in conflicts, the individual mean for this question is 3.83, with standard deviation is 1.24. The result indicated that respondents tend to strongly agree with this statement. Based on the standard deviation, the question is considered reliable with less variation. The result indicated employees believed that union and third-party involvement is important. For question no.3: reward based on performance, the individual mean is 3.22, with a standard deviation of 1.44. This means that respondents tend to agree with this statement. Based on the standard deviation, the question is still considered reliable. The result indicates only certain respondents receive incentives reward based on their performance.

For question no.4: employee opinion and feedback the individual mean is 3.05, with a standard deviation is 1.18. This means that the respondents close to agree with this statement, according to the standard deviation score, the question is still reliable. The result said that employers do not usually seek opinions and feedback from employees. For question no.5: compensation and benefits, the individual mean for this question is 3.51, with standard deviation is 1.44. This means that respondents close to agree with this question. The results indicated that the average

respondents believed they received certain compensation and benefits in accordance with legal requirements. For question no.6: training for promotion, the individual mean for this question is 2.00, with standard deviation is 1.17. This indicates that respondents disagree with this statement. The highest percentage of respondents is 45.4%, it means employees do not receive any proper training for future promotion or career development.

For question no.7: employment security, the individual mean for this question is 4.01, with a standard deviation of 1.04. Based on the mean score, this statement tends to strongly agree and reliable with minimal variation. The highest percentage of respondents, 43.4%, indicated employees feel stable and secure in their employment and due to having a permanent employment contract. For question no.8: profit-based bonus, the individual mean score is 1.45, with standard deviation is 0.825. Although the standard deviation is close to 1, indicates some reliability, the mean scores referred respondents strongly disagree with this statement. The lowest percentage of respondents for this question 69.7%, it means employees do not receive any bonus and benefits based on the company's revenue.

Table 9. Employee attitude and behaviours

Sr.	Statements	Scale	N	R	S	О	A	Mean	STD
	Do you agree with this statement 'I	Freq	5	32	37	49	29		
1	would be happy to spend my career within this company'?	%	3.3	21.1	24.3	32.2	19.1	3.43	1.11
	How satisfied are you with the physical	Freq	10	2	26	61	53	3.95	1.08
2	working conditions at your workplace?	%	6.6	1.3	17.1	40.1	34.9		
	How are you likely to seek job opportunities	Freq	6	16	50	17	63		
3	outside of this organization within the next 3-6 months?	%	3.9	10.5	32.9	11.2	41.4	3.75	1.21
	Overall								1.13

Source: Survey data (July 2024). N = Never, R = Rarely, S = Sometimes, O = Often, A = Always.

According to table 9, the overall mean for employee attitude and behaviours is 3.71, with standard deviation is 1.13. This means the overall mean score is close to "agree", while the standard deviation is around 1. Thus, these questions indicate reliability for research. Since

respondents agreed with this statement, the results said that employee attitudes and behaviours are significantly connected with conflicts and partnership practices.

For question no.1: employee commitment, the individual mean score result is 3.43, with a standard deviation is 1.11. Based on these results employees agreed with this statement, indicating they are committed to staying with their company for some reasons such as work permit status and other HR matters. For question no.2: employee satisfaction, the individual mean score result is 3.95, with a standard deviation is 1.08. Based on these results, this question indicates a response close to strongly agree and is reliable. This means that employees are highly satisfied with the working conditions arranged by their employers. For question no.3: employee turnover, the individual mean is 3.75, with a standard deviation is 1.13. It means employees strongly agreed with this question, they frequently try to seek other opportunities for career development or improvement for their lives.

4.4.1 Correlation coefficient

Table 10. Correlation Matrix

	LC	PP	EAB	
Labour conflicts	1.000	.503**	.618**	
Partnership Practices	.503**	1.000	.351**	
Employee attitude and behaviours	.618**	.351**	1.000	

LC = Labour conflicts, PP = Partnership practices, EAB = Employee Attitude and Behaviours

I analysed correlation matrix between labour conflicts, partnership practices and employee attitude and behaviours. Based on table 10, the correlation between labour conflicts and partnership practices is 0.503**, it means that the result positively strong relationship between the two variables. Moreover, the correlation between partnership practices and employee attitude and behaviours is 0.351**, it means that the result positively fair relationship between the two variables. Furthermore, the correlation between employee attitude and behaviours and labour conflicts is 0.618**, the result indicated positively strong relationship between the two variables. Moreover, the overall variables' correlation results are statistically significant at 5% (**) for this research.

In general, to understand the impact of those variables, I performed regression analysis and empirically analysed each variable in the following sections.

4.5 Hypothesis Testing

In this section, regression analysis was conducted with detailed results to examine the relationships between labour conflicts, partnership practices, and employee attitudes and behaviours. Additionally, this analysis aims to answer each hypothesis and address the main objective of the research. Based on tables 11 and 12, conflicts including interests, right and affect based are treated as dependent variables, while partnership practices are treated independent variables. According to tables 13 and 14, employee attitude and behaviours including commitment, satisfaction and turnover are served as dependent variables, while the partnership practices served as independent variables. Finally, table 15 presented employee attitude and behaviours served dependent variables, while conflicts served as independent variables.

Table 11. Regression analysis of Partnership Practices and Labour Conflicts

Independent variables	Dependent varia	ables: Conflicts
	Baseline	With
	Model	control
Partnership Practices	.453***	0.363***
	.042	(0.0539)
Female (Based: male)		0.0103
		(0.0959)
Age (Based: between 18 to 29)		-0.0431
		(0.0709)
Education (based: Primary level)		
Secondary level		0.0528
		(0.187)
High school level		0.0803
		(0.181)
University level		0.339
		(0.208)
Master and above level		-0.0931
		(0.274)
Position (based: Worker)		
Line Leader		-0.235
		(0.277)
Supervisor		0.0394
		(0.446)
Other		-0.179
		(0.182)
Workplace location (based: Myanmar)		
Thailand		-0.322***
		(0.0856)
Malaysia		- 0.402***
		(0.0876)
Constant		2.632***

	(0.287)
Observations	152
R-squared	0.554
Robust standard errors in parentheses	
*** p<0.01, ** p<0.05, * p<0.1	

According to table.11, the baseline model result is 0.453*** while the control test is 0.363***, which means that labour conflicts and partnership practices are positively associated and significant. This result indicated when labour conflicts increased by 0.343 units while partnership practices increased by one unit. However, when analysing the control tests with different countries the results showed that an increase one unit partnership practices led to reduce in labour conflicts by 0.322 unit (1% significant level) unit in Thailand and 0.402 unit (1% significant level) units in Malaysia compared to Myanmar. Therefore, the result partially supported hypothesis 1.

Table 12. Regression analysis of Partnership Practices and Interest-based, Right based and Affect based conflicts

	Dependen	t variables:	Dependent variables:		Dependent variables:	
Independent variables	Interests		Right		Affect	
	Baseline	With	Baseline	With	Baseline	With
	model	control	model	control	model	control
Partnership practices	.076***	0.289***	.647***	0.298***	.636***	0.501***
	.060	(0.0672)	.074	(0.072)	.070	(0.0896)
Female (based: Male)		-0.126		-0.0754		0.233
		(0.171)		(0.144)		(0.202)
Age (based: Between 18 to 29)		-0.028		-0.0491		-0.0523
		(0.104)		(0.079)		(0.138)
Education (based: Primary level	1)					
Secondary level		0.135		0.0734		-0.0496
		(0.282)		(0.164)		(0.306)
High school level		0.208		-0.0438		0.0766
		(0.271)		(0.171)		(0.304)
Bachelor level		0.411		-0.368		0.238
		(0.314)		(0.224)		(0.342)
Master level		0.503		-1.281***		1.058**
		(0.45)		(0.316)		(0.423)
Position (based: Worker)						
Line leader		0.322		-0.406*		-0.62
		(0.329)		(0.242)		(0.406)
Supervisor		0.642***		-0.506		-0.0178
-		(0.244)		(1.381)		(0.317)

Other	0.510*	-0.677**	-0.369
	(0.26)	(0.289)	(0.356)
Workplace location (based: Myanmar)			
Thailand	0.721***	-1.192***	-0.495***
	(0.108)	(0.166)	(0.161)
Malaysia	0.725***	-1.329***	-0.601***
	(0.112)	(0.114)	(0.167)
Constant	1.861***	3.758***	2.276***
	(0.386)	(0.325)	(0.516)
Observations	152	152	152
R-squared	0.328	0.737	0.459

Robust standard errors in parentheses *** p<0.01, ** p<0.05, * p<0.1

Based on table no.12, the baseline model result for interest-based conflict is 0.076***, and with the control test is 0.289***, which means that the interest-based conflicts are positively associated with partnership practices. According to the individual control result, the dependent variable interest-based conflicts and independent variable partnership practices are positively significant. However, contrary to hypothesis 1a, as an increase of one unit in partnership practices, increased 0.076 unit in interest-based conflicts.

Based on table no.12, the baseline model result for right-based conflict is 0.647***, and with the control test is 0.298***, which means that the right-based conflicts are positively associated with partnership practices. According to the individual control result, the dependent variable right-based conflicts and independent variable partnership practices are positively significant. However, contrary to hypothesis 1b, as an increase of one unit in partnership practices, also leads to 0.647 unit increase in right-based conflicts. Despite this, individual control results indicated that certain demographic factors, such as employee having a bachelor and above level education, holding a line leader and above position are significantly reduced the interests-based conflicts. Furthermore, workplace locations also played a role, with interests-based conflicts decreased by 1.192 units (1% significant level) in Thailand, 1.329 units (1% significant level) in Malaysia compared to Myanmar, when the partnership practices increased 1%. Therefore, the results can be said that the findings partially supported hypothesis 1b.

Based on table no.12, the baseline model result for affect-based conflict is 0.636***, and with the control test is 0.501***, which means that the affect-based conflicts are positively associated with partnership practices. According to the individual control result, the dependent

variable affect-based conflicts and independent variable partnership practices are positively significant. However, the result did not support hypothesis 1c, as an increase of one unit in partnership practices, also lead to 0.636 unit increase in affect-based conflicts. Despite this, the control results indicated workplace locations had reduced affect based conflicts when compared to Myanmar, reduced 0.495 unit (1% significant level) in Thailand, 0.601 unit (1% significant level) in Malaysia when one unit partnership practices increased. Therefore, it can be said that the findings partially supported hypothesis 1c.

Table 13. Regression analysis of Partnership Practices and Employee Attitude and Behaviours

Independent variables	Dependent variables: Employee attitude and behaviours		
	Baseline	With	
	model	control	
Partnership practices	.477***	0.331***	
	.069	(0.0866)	
Female (based: Male)		0.343*	
		(0.179)	
Age (based: between 18 to 29)		-0.00478	
		(0.114)	
Education (based: Primary level)			
Secondary level		-0.121	
		(0.302)	
High school level		-0.248	
		(0.302)	
Bachelor level		-0.342	
		(0.344)	
Master and above level		-0.676	
		(0.411)	
Position (based: Worker)			
Line leader		-0.368	
		(0.321)	
Supervisor		-0.0755	
		(0.301)	
Other		0.0351	
		(0.263)	
Workplace location (based: Myanmar))		
Thailand		-0.750***	
		(0.16)	
Malaysia		-0.319**	
·		(0.158)	
Constant		2.772***	
		(0.447)	
Observations		152	

R-squared 0.396

Robust standard errors in parentheses *** p<0.01, ** p<0.05, * p<0.1

According to table.13, the baseline model result is 0.477***, while the control test result is 0.331***, which means employee attitudes and behaviours are positively associated with partnership practices. When partnership practices increase by one unit, employee attitude and behaviours increase by 0.477 units, indicating that partnership practices have a positive impact on employee attitude and behaviours. Therefore, the result supported Hypothesis 2.

Table 14. Regression analysis of Partnership Practices and employee commitment, satisfaction, and turnover

	Dependent variables:		Dependent variables:		Dependent variables:	
Independent variables	Commitment		Satisfaction		Turnover	
	Baseline	With	Baseline	With	Baseline	With
	model	control	model	control	model	control
Partnership practices	.570***	0.412***	.535***	0.459***	.327***	0.121
	.102	(0.128)	.099	(0.113)	.118	(0.136)
Female (based: Male)		-0.261		0.857***		0.432
		(0.215)		(0.228)		(0.463)
Age (based: Between 18 to 29)		0.0511		-0.0867		0.0213
		(0.164)		(0.142)		(0.239)
Education (based: Primary level)						
Secondary level		-0.107		-0.329		0.0717
		(0.431)		(0.332)		(0.48)
High school level		-0.291		-0.382		-0.0706
		(0.432)		(0.33)		(0.467)
Bachelor level		-0.465		-1.329***		0.767
		(0.444)		(0.42)		(0.607)
Master and above level		0.145		-0.931**		-1.24
		(0.456)		(0.425)		(0.801)
Position (based: Worker)						
Line leader		-0.532		-0.589		0.0179
		(0.447)		(0.399)		(0.356)
Supervisor		0.574		-0.996***		0.196
		(0.825)		(0.371)		(0.78)
Other		0.23		0.595		-0.72
		(0.29)		(0.37)		(0.501)
Workplace location (based: Myana	mar)					
		-				-
Thailand		1.092***		-0.136		1.024***
		(0.281)		(0.186)		(0.254)
Malaysia		-0.201		-0.102		-0.653**

	(0.266)	(0.199)	(0.275)
Constant	2.816***	2.286***	3.213***
	(0.666)	(0.575)	(0.706)
Observations	152	152	152
R-squared	0.318	0.392	0.227

Robust standard errors in parentheses *** p<0.01, ** p<0.05, * p<0.1

Based on table no.14, the baseline model result for employee commitment is 0.570***, and with the control test is 0.412***, which means that the employee commitment is positively associated with partnership practices. According to the overall result, the dependent variable employee commitment and independent variable partnership practices are positively significant. As an increase of one unit in partnership practices, increased 0.570 unit in employee commitment. The overall result indicated partnership practices positively impact on employee commitment within the workplace. Therefore, this result supported hypothesis 2a.

As shown in table no.14, the baseline model result for employee satisfaction is 0.535***, and with the control test is 0.459***, which means that employee satisfaction is positively associated with partnership practices. According to the overall result, the dependent variable employee satisfaction and independent variable partnership practices are positively significant. As an increase of one unit in partnership practices, increased 0.459 unit in employee satisfaction. When analysing control test, certain demographic factors, such as gender, showed that female employee experienced a 0.857 unit (1% significant level) increased in positive satisfaction when one unit partnership practice was increased. The overall result indicated partnership practices effectively improved employee satisfaction within the workplace. Therefore, this result supported hypothesis 2b.

As presented in table no.14, the baseline model result for employee turnover rate is 0.327***, and with the control test is 0.121, which means that employee turnover rate is associated with partnership practices. According to overall result, the dependent variable employee turnover and independent variable partnership practices are significant. Nevertheless, when increased one unit in partnership practices, increased 0.121 unit in turnover, therefore, the result indicated did not positively support hypothesis 2c. However, based on individual control result, workplace location in Thailand 1.024 unit (1% significant level) and Malaysia 0.653 unit (5% significant level) effectively reduced on employee turnover rate when one unit partnership practices increased. Thus, this result can say partially supported hypothesis 2c.

Table 15. Regression analysis of Workplace Conflicts and Employee Attitude and Behaviours

Independent variables	Dependent variables: Employee attitude and behaviours			
	Baseline	With		
	model	control		
Conflicts	.873***	0.776***		
	.091	(0.112)		
Female (based: Male)		0.320*		
		(0.19)		
Age (based: Between 18 to 29)		0.0252		
		(0.115)		
Education (based: Primary level)				
Secondary level		-0.168		
		(0.272)		
High school level		-0.31		
		(0.275)		
Bachelor level		-0.621**		
		(0.29)		
Master and above level		-0.773**		
		(0.331)		
Position (based: Worker)				
Line leader		-0.193		
		(0.232)		
Supervisor		-0.129		
		(0.308)		
Other		0.153		
		(0.238)		
Workplace location (based: Myanma	r)			
Thailand		-0.538***		
		(0.159)		
Malaysia		-0.0516		
		(0.16)		
Constant		0.916*		
		(0.531)		
Observations		152		
R-squared		0.506		

In reference to the table no.15, the baseline model result for employee attitude and behaviours is 0.873***, and with the control test is 0.776***, which means that employee attitude and behaviours are positively associated with conflicts. According to the overall result, the

dependent variable employee attitude, and behaviours and independent variable conflicts are positively significant. As an increase of one unit in conflicts, increased 0.776 unit in employee attitude and behaviours. Thus, these results did not support hypothesis 3. However, based on individual control tested result, bachelor level education is 0.621 unit (5% significant level) and master and above level education is 0.773 unit (5% significant level) and workplace location such as Thailand is 0.538 unit (1% significant level) are negatively significant on employee attitude and behaviours when one unit increase in conflicts. Thus, this result partially supported hypothesis 3.

4.6 Summary

This study focused on the relationship between workplace conflicts and managing these conflicts using human resource practices, particularly partnership practices. Furthermore, examined how these conflicts and partnership practices impact employee attitudes and behaviours. This research is divided into five parts, each of the stages aligned with the research objectives and supported by statistical analysis. In the overall descriptive analysis results, all the questions demonstrated reliability for the research, indicated by the mean and standard deviation scores. Based on the correlation analysis, all variables are significantly related to each other. In the regression analysis, the overall results were significant for each variable. These findings supported hypotheses 2, 2a and 2b. However, hypotheses 1, 1a, 1b, 1c, 2c and 3 were only partially supported, due to respondents from different countries and employing different practices.

Chapter 5: Discussion, Recommendation and Conclusion

5.1 Introduction

The purpose of this research was investigated the relationship between workplace conflicts, partnership practices in HR matters, and employee attitude and behaviours across different countries, focusing Myanmar national workers who are working in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. I analysed the collected data across three areas to examine conflict management using specific practices and tested how these conflicts and practices impact employee attitudes and behaviours in the workplace. Firstly, this study investigated the relationship between HRM practices, particularly in partnership practices and various types of conflicts, including interest-based, right-based, and affect-based conflicts. Secondly, examined the relationship between HRM practices, particularly in partnership practices and employee attitude and behaviours

including employee commitment, satisfaction, and turnover. Finally, the results investigated the relationship between conflicts, and employee attitudes and behaviours.

In this chapter, I discussed the findings and analysis from the previous chapter (chapter 4) and compare how the empirical analysis was performed for this research. Moreover, this discussion includes overall results, both theoretical and practical implication, recommendation, limitations for this research and concludes with final summary.

5.2 Main findings

In the main findings for this research, the results identified a relationship between partnership practices and workplace conflicts. Overall partnership practices reduced workplace conflicts in Thailand and Malaysia, compared to Myanmar, due to certain circumstances. Furthermore, a more detailed analysis of the relationship between conflicts and independent variables partnership practices, specifically with interests-based, right-based, and affect-based, the individual results revealed that the partnership practices reduced right-based and affect-based conflicts in Thailand and Malaysia, but not in Myanmar. Moreover, partnership practices did not reduce the interests-based conflicts in any of the countries studied, including Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. There are some situations that the partnership practices do not work in Myanmar, largely due to the lack of local opportunities and regulations caused by the political chaos since February 2021. This issue has led many local workers to keep working in their current roles even if they are dissatisfied. These situations that partnership practices cannot positively impact on workplace conflicts in Myanmar.

Secondly, the results identified a relationship between partnership practices, and employee attitudes and behaviours. The overall findings indicated that partnership practices can positively impact employee attitudes and behaviours. However, in detail findings for these variables across the countries, partnership practices did not positively improvement in Thailand and Malaysia, however it could be affective impact in Myanmar. Along with this, a more detailed analysis has conducted with employee attitude; employee commitment, satisfaction and turnover, the results shown partnership practices did not support employee commitment, satisfaction and turnover both Thailand and Malaysia whereas Myanmar.

Finally, the result examined the relationship between workplace conflicts and employee attitude and behaviours. Overall, the findings indicated that conflicts could positively impact

employee attitude and behaviours, as employee attitude and behaviours still increased even when employees experienced conflicts in their workplace. However, a detailed analysis across different countries revealed that in Thailand and Malaysia, employee attitudes and behaviours decreased when employee having conflicts in their workplace. This difference can be attributed to the stable policies and regulations in these countries, which ensure that organizations adhere to required practices in the workplace. In contrast, organizations in Myanmar are challenging with external issues such as unstable policies and regulations due to ongoing political chaos in the whole country. As a result, the organization struggles to implement effective strategies and practices. From the discussion of an employee's perspective, even if they are dissatisfied with their workplace or less commitment with their roles, they do not have many chances to change the jobs, because of limited opportunities and only a few chances to find new jobs during current crisis. That is why overall results indicated employee attitude and behaviours still increased, despite facing conflicts in the workplace.

The review of individual Cronbach's alpha scores was low, due to participants from different countries and addressing practices are different. However, these scores do not significantly impact my overall findings and results. Even though Cronbach's alpha scores were low, the correlation results remained positively significant.

5.2.1 Review of findings

In this chapter, I discussed the findings, including Cronbach's alpha results for all variables, descriptive statistics focusing on overall mean and standard deviation, the correlation matrix results and regression analysis for hypotheses testing. The review of the overall descriptive analysis for labour conflicts indicated that the means score was close to "agree" and indicated reliable questions for this research. This means that many workers acknowledged facing different types of conflicts, including interests based, right based and affect based conflicts in their workplace or organization. Moreover, the overall descriptive analysis of employee relations and partnership practices in HR matters for this research showed results close to "agree". However, there were some challenges with individual questions, particularly regarding "employee involvement in the workplace, unions and third-party involvement in workplace conflicts and profit-based Bonuses". These challenges arose due to the different countries adopting different practices. However, they did not pose a significant issue when testing and answering the hypothesis for this research. Furthermore, the overall descriptive analysis of employee attitude and behaviours showed that all respondents agreed on these

questions and demonstrated the reliability of these measures for this study. The review of individual Cronbach's alpha scores was low, due to participants from different countries and addressing practices are different. However, these scores do not significantly impact my overall findings and results. Even though Cronbach's alpha scores were low, the correlation results remained positively significant. The review of the regressions results indicated that the hypotheses 2,2a and 2b were supported. Additionally, hypotheses 1,1a,1b,1c,2c and 3 were only partially supported with certain reasons.

5.3 Discussion

In this research, I began by discussion with three main configurations which is workplace conflicts, focusing the employee who are working for manufacturing in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. Workplace conflicts composed of interests, right and affect based. Secondly, partnership practices took a primary role play in managing workplace conflicts and employee attitude and behaviours. Finally, the tests indicated a relationship between labour conflicts and employee attitude.

In hypothesis 1, the results investigated that the partnership practices can reduced the workplace conflicts in certain countries such as in Thailand and Malaysia. Thus, this result is partially consistent with the findings of Meng Xi et al (2021) revealed that partnership practices can reduce labour conflicts in specific countries in ASEAN regions. However, one related conflicts sub hypothesis 1a was not supported. This result indicated that partnership practices could not reduce interest-based conflicts both Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. One possible explanation for this result is that the migrant labours are tolerant of interest-based conflicts, or they may not notice what the interests-based going on in the workplace. Additionally, most of manufacturing factories in ASEAN, particularly in Myanmar, Thailand and Malaysia, employers are not considered what employee's voice and requests. These are the possible reasons that partnership practices cannot effectively reduce interest-based conflicts for this research.

For hypothesis 2, overall partnership practices can positively impact employee attitudes and behaviours. Thus, this result indicated consistent with the findings of Meng Xi et al (2021), which is partnership practices can positively improve overall employee attitude and behaviours including employee commitment, satisfaction, and turnover. As I discussed in literature review, partnership practices can improve employee commitment, participation and overall attitude and

behaviours according to Xi (2017). Hence, this results positively connected with my literature review.

For hypothesis 3, overall labour conflicts can positively impact on employee attitudes and behaviours, however based on individual control tests, education, level, and workplace location negatively impact overall employee attitudes behaviours. Thus, this result indicated partially consistent with the findings of Meng Xi et al (2021) as well. Additionally, in this study results supported most of my hypotheses directly. Some of hypotheses are only partially supported because the respondents participated in this research across different countries and addressing practices.

To discuss based on research objective 1 and 4, these studies indicated, overall human resource management and partnership practices can mediate and reduce workplace conflicts, especially in Thailand and Malaysia with certain reasons, due to the stable policy and economics. In Myanmar, the results did not show completely manage workplace conflicts, because of the national wide political chaos and unstable condition with mixed government policies and regulations. Organizations maintain the current situation instead of addressing new practices in the workplace. To answer the research objective 2, HRM and partnership practices directly supported employee attitudes and behaviours according to the regression and correlations matrix results. To answer the research objective 3, conflicts can partially negatively impact employee attitudes based on education and workplace locations. It means, conflicts can reduce employee attitudes and behaviours based on circumstance.

5.4 Theoretical implications

In this research, I provided significant insights into the existing literature on labour relations conflicts and partnership practices theory. Firstly, I provide a significant conceptual contribution to the literature on workplace conflicts within ASEAN regions. Firstly, as far as I aware, this study is conceptualizing labour relations conflict and create a measurable scale for labour conflicts in the ASEAN regions, specifically in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. Employing and resolving labour conflict and addressing appropriate practices has consistently been a key focus in the literature on employee relations and human resource practices (Martinez-Pecino et al.,2008). Moreover, this research examined and identified three types of workplace conflicts including interests, right and affect based conflicts are present for manufacturing in ASEAN regions. These findings also offer a strong foundation for researchers

and practitioners aiming to identify, assess and address the different types of conflicts in the workplace. Secondly, based on the Teague et al., (2020), organization require to employ effective approaches and practices to handle workplace conflicts. Researchers from various fields started to explore methods for handling workplace conflicts, including arbitration and mediations processes (Zeller & Trackman, 2019), and conflicts management practices by strategically (Nash & Hann, 2020).

Furthermore, I found that the partnership practices at the country level were partially related to conflicts including interests, right and affect based conflicts. In this study, I adopted from the manufacturing in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia to examine HRM and partnership practices on workplace conflicts, thereby enhance the human resource literature by incorporating an international perspective. According to Xi et al (2017), partnership practices have a positive impact handling workplace conflict. Finally, Xi's (2017) findings, partnership practices positively effect on employee attitude and behaviours in national wide in Chinese organization in China. In my study, based on overall results, partnership practices could positively impact both employee attitude and behaviours including employee commitment, satisfaction, and turnover. Moreover, overall labour conflicts can positively impact employee attitudes and behaviours. Additionally, in this study results, most of independent and dependent variables are direct positively related. Some of the variables are partially related because of the data sets from across the different countries and practices.

5.5 Practical implication

In this study, there are some important practical implications. Firstly, the organization should pay attention not only to rights and legal based conflicts within the workplace because of the legal requirement but also should be balance between interests, right and affect. According to the respondent results and descriptive analysis, interest-based respond was slightly lower than other ground-based conflicts. In addition, many manufacturing industries in Myanmar, Thailand and Malaysia may more focus on right-based conflict and they may neglect to support their employee's perception and care for them. Consistently, these interests and affect based conflicts occur negatively impact on employee attitudes and behaviours. Therefore, organizations require to implement partnership practices or any other appropriate approach to minimize these conflicts such showing more respect to all employees, support and setting effective communication within the workplace. Furthermore, Xi et al (2017), discovered that partnership practices positively impact on labour conflicts and employee attitudes and

behaviours. Consequently, the second implication from this study is that organizations should develop and adopt partnership practices. These findings align with those of earlier research by Guest and Peccei (2001).

5.6 Recommendations

There are three main specific recommendations from this research. It would greatly benefit that organization to improve three areas that have statistically low from overall means, presented on Table.8 employee relations and partnership practices.

The first recommendation is that organizations, particularly in ASEAN countries, should implement comprehensive partnership practices to minimize workplace conflicts and improve employee attitudes and behaviours. In partnership practices include building effective combinations with all employees regardless of their role, setting up employee engaging programs and enhancing all employee involvement in decision making processes. Organizations should customize the practices during instability situation, especially in Myanmar. This customized practice should fit both employees' and local situations.

The second recommendation is that organizations should create opportunities for all employees to get involved in the organization's future decisions. Employee involvement not only improves teamwork skills but also enhances overall employee's commitment. Additionally, this approach can help prevent misunderstanding between employees and management or employers, thereby positively impacting workplace conflicts.

The third recommendation is that organizations should offer training and development platforms to enhance employees' career growth within the workplace. This is an aspect of partnership practices designed to enhance employee satisfaction and commitment. It can improve overall work productivity. Providing opportunities for skill and competency development can increase overall work productivity. When employees see that their workplace supports their professional growth, they are less likely to consider leaving, which can consequently reduce employee turnover and lower recruitment costs.

5.7 Limitations

It is important to note that this study has several limitations for future research. The first issue for this study, adopted from the observational data, which may miss important information

from respondent based on the survey collection questions. This research focused on partnership practices in HR matters, and how these practices impact on workplace conflicts and employee attitudes and behaviours. Despite this study, respondents answered based on their individual experiences in workplace conflicts and their attitudes and behaviours in response to their organization implement partnership practices.

Another limitation is that the data were collected from various countries in ASEAN regions, leading to an imbalance in the sample sizes, with 102 respondents from Myanmar and only 25 respondents each from Thailand and Malaysia. As a result, the findings have some partially supported hypotheses, due to workplace locations and addressing practices are different then they are experiencing are different. Thus, the results found individually different. However, future research can find more reliable outcomes by focusing on a single country or ensuring an equal amount of sample size across different locations.

5.8 Ethical considerations

In this study, I protected the certain and honesty of the data what I collected, analysing, and interpretation. I avoided any kind of inappropriate issues such as data falsification and manipulation of my entire thesis. I have reflected on how my conclusions might affect various stakeholders and have aimed to apply the results in a way that promotes social good and prevents harm. I adhered to relevant ethical guidelines and regulatory standards to ensure the ethical conduct of the dissertation.

5.9 Conclusion

The essential role for this study was examined the relationship between workplace, partnership practices and employee attitudes and behaviours in Myanmar, Thailand and Malaysia. The research focused on Myanmar national employees who are working for manufacturing in those specific countries in ASEAN regions. Additionally, the research goal is to find out the relationship between labour conflicts and partnership practices that influence employee attitudes and behaviours. Firstly, in this finding's result identified the relationship between independent variables partnership practices and dependent variable labour conflicts in difference across countries. According to the findings result partnership practices significantly reduced workplace conflicts in Thailand and Malaysia compared to Myanmar. The result indicated that partnership practices could not significantly reduced workplace conflicts in Myanmar, due to the local specific reasons.

Moreover, the results shows that partnership practices can positively improve overall employee attitudes and behaviours including employee commitment, satisfaction except turnover rate in Myanmar. Furthermore, these findings explored the relationship between conflicts and employee attitudes and behaviours, the result indicated the conflicts partially supported in employee attitudes and behaviours based on education and workplace locations. Secondly, this study presented literature on HR practices and partnership practices and workplace conflicts theory by conceptualizing workplace conflicts for developing measurables in ASEAN regions context. Practically this study found out the positive relationship both partnership practices and workplace conflicts into employee's attitudes and behaviours. Specially, in stable economics and political countries in Thailand and Malaysia. Moreover, the organization in Myanmar still challenging to employ these practices due to the local unstable situations.

In this study, presented serval limitation, one of those, imbalance sample size between Myanmar, Thailand and Malaysia which may affect the analysing of this finding. Additionally, this study focused on handling workplace conflicts with informal resolutions methods and addressing appropriate strategies and excluding collective bargaining processes. However, future research should be balancing data to get more robust results.

In conclusion, this study examines workplace conflicts management employing human resource management and practices and how these two variables impact on employee commitment, satisfaction and turnover and overall employee attitudes and behaviours. Workplace conflicts can directly relate internal organizational addressing practices and indirectly related to external factors and conditions such as stability of the policies and bureaucratic systems.

Personal Learning Reflective Essay (CIPD requirement)

This reflective essay explores my personal learning experience throughout my academic journey Master of Art (MA) in Human Resource Management program. Moreover, in this master's dissertation focuses on human resource practices and partnership practices, labour conflicts and employee attitudes and behaviours within the ASEAN regions, particularly in Myanmar, Thailand, and Malaysia. In this essay, I discuss the skills and knowledge I gained from working on this dissertation. This study presented challenges and had a significant

improvement in my professional goal. Furthermore, it has always considered how this study experience will influence my future career in the Human Resource Management industry.

In this master's dissertation research, I contributed to serval challenging activities: includes conducting a comprehensive literature review of empirical studies, creating surveys questions starting with respondent's consent, collecting data from various locations and roles, analysing collected data using appropriate methodology tools such as SPSS, and interpreting the results. I this entire dissertation I focused to examine the relationship between three variables such partnership practices, conflicts including interest, right and affect based and employee attitudes and behaviours including commitment, satisfaction, and turnover. Fundamentally, I aimed to find solutions for addressing workplace conflicts with informal resolution methods.

One of the significant challenges for this dissertation I faced was analysing the collected data section "chapter 3", due to the focus on different countries in ASEAN regions. In this participant country had a unique policies, practices, and local regulations. These challenges helped me improve my critical thinking skills from various perspectives. To address these, I analysed the data not only into overall results but also discussed from individual results to compare one location and another. For instance, according to the findings, the results indicated partnership practices significantly reduced workplace conflicts in Thailand and Malaysia whereas in Myanmar. This discrepancy results required me to critically examine why these two countries found significantly reduced workplace conflicts when addressing partnership practices compare to Myanmar during my interpreting the findings.

Professional development perspective, this study significantly improved my critical skills, theoretical skills, and analytical skills. Moreover, I earned professionally using statistically analysing tools and handling complex data. This experience enabled me to manage and discuss the report from various points of view and enhance my skills in managing diverse tasks within a certain timeframe. Additionally, I gained the skills and knowledge of handling different approaches including collective bargaining and developing strategies based on organizations culture and external issues.

In conclusion, overall dissertation, and academic journey, I have developed both research methodology and professional skills in HRM context. These overall challenges have improved my ability to handle complex HR issues with competence and confidence. These skills and

knowledge undoubtedly support my future career in human resource management and consultancy in management sectors. Finally, this personal learning reflective essay highlights the critical role of HR practices and the importance of continuous adaptation and learning in human resource management for all management industry.

References

- Armstrong, M (2006). A handbook of human resource management practice 10th ed. Kogan Page Limited. Page: 29,33,39,43,773,776,784,785,788.
- Abubakar, S.Y (2002). Migrant labour in Malaysia: impact and implications of the Asian financial crisis. EADN Regional Project on the Social Impact of the Asian Financial Crisis.
- Bennett, T (2013). Do union-management learning partnerships reduce workplace conflict? Employee relations, 36(1), pp.17-32.
- Currie, D., Gormley, T., Roche, B. and Teague, P (2017). The management of workplace conflict: Contrasting pathways in the HRM literature. International journal of management reviews, 19 (4), pp.492-509.
- Chantavanich, S. and Jayagupta, R (2010). Immigration to Thailand: the case of migrant workers from Myanmar, Laos, and Cambodia. Immigration worldwide: policies, practices, and trends, pp.303,304,306.

- Cavanaugh, M.A., Boswell, W.R., Roehling, M.V. and Boudreau, J.W (2000). An empirical examination of self-reported work stress among US managers. Journal of applied psychology, 85(1), p.65.
- Currie, D. and Teague, P (2016). Economic citizenship and workplace conflict in Anglo-American industrial relations systems. British Journal of Industrial Relations, 54(2), pp.358-384.
- Cummings, C.L (2017). Cross-Sectional Design. In: Allen, M. (Ed). The SAGE Encyclopedia of Communication Research Methods. Thousand Oaks: SAGE publications. pp.315-317.
- Euwema, M.C., Medina, F.J., García, A.B. and Pender, E.R (2019). Mediation in collective labor conflicts (p. 339). Springer Nature.
- Elgoibar, P., Euwema, M. and Munduate, L (2017). Conflict management. In Oxford research encyclopedia of psychology.
- Eitra, M.Y.O (2017). Identifying Major Labour Policy Issues in Myanmar. Japan labor issues/The Japan Institute for Labour Policy and Training, International Research Exchange Section.
- Evans, J.R. and Mathur, A (2005). The value of online surveys. Internet research. 15(2), pp.195-219.
- Folger, J., Scott Poole, M. & Stutman, R (2005). Working through conflict. Boston, MA: Pearson.
- Guest, D.E. and Peccei, R (2001). Partnership at work: mutuality and the balance of advantage. British Journal of Industrial Relations, 39(2), pp.207-236.
- Gilin Oore, D., Leiter, M.P. and LeBlanc, D.E (2015). Individual and organizational factors promoting successful responses to workplace conflict. Canadian Psychology/psychologie canadienne, 56(3), p.301.
- Gallagher, M. E (2001). Contagious capitalism: Globalization and the politics of labor in China. Princeton University Press.
- Hocker, J. & Wilmot, W (1995). Interpersonal conflict. Madison, WI: WCB Brown & Benchmark.
- ILO (2019), New law a major step for workplace safety and health in Myanmar. Available online https://www.ilo.org/resource/news/new-law-major-step-workplace-safet y-and-health-myanmar (July 20,2024).
- ILO (2020), Developing International and International Labour Migration Governance in Myanmar. Available online https://www.ilo.org/projects-and-partnerships/projects/developing-international-and-internal-labour-migration-governance-myanmar (Augu-st 05,2024).
- Jones, C. and Saundry, R (2012). The practice of discipline: evaluating the roles and relationship between managers and HR professionals. Human Resource Management Journal, 22(3), pp.252-266.
- Khin Soe Kyi (2018), Social Relationships of Myanmar Migrant Workers in Malaysia: An Ethnographic Study.
- MARTINEZ-PECINO, R.O.B.E.R.T.O., Munduate, L., Medina, F.J. and Euwema, M.C., (2008). Effectiveness of mediation strategies in collective bargaining. Industrial Relations: A Journal of Economy and Society, 47(3), pp.480-495.

- Morrison, E.W. and Robinson, S.L (1997). When employees feel betrayed: A model of how psychological contract violation develops. Academy of management Review, 22(1), pp.226-256.
- Martin C, Euwema Francisco J. Medina Ana Belen Garcia, Erica Romero Pender (2019), Industrial Relations and Conflict Management. Page no.8,5.
- Maslach, C., Schaufeli, W. B., & Leiter, M. P (2001). Job burnout. Annual Review of Psychology, 52(1), 397–422.
- Meyer, J.P. and Allen, N.J., 1997. Commitment in the workplace: Theory, research, and application. Sage publications.
- Meyer, B., Zill, A., Dilba, D., Gerlach., R and Schumann, A. (2021). Employee psychological well-being during the Covid-19 pandemic in Germany: A longitudinal study of demands, resources, and exhaustion. International Journal of Psychology. 56(4), pp.532-550.
- Myanmar Labour News (2024), Temporary suspension of sending Myanmar MOU workers to Malaysia. Available online: https://myanmarlabournews.com/en/posts/temporary-suspension-of-sending-myanmar-mou-workers-to-malaysia . (August 05, 2024).
- Martinez-Pecino, R., Munduate, L., Medina, F.J. and Euwema, M.C., 2008. Effectiveness of mediation strategies in collective bargaining. Industrial Relations: A Journal of Economy and Society, 47(3), pp.480-495.
- Ong, M.H.A. and Puteh, F. (2017). Quantitative data analysis: Choosing between SPSS, PLS, and AMOS in social science research. International Interdisciplinary Journal of Scientific Research. 3 (1), pp.14-25.
- Purcell, J, Kinnie, K, Hutchinson, Rayton, B and Swart, J (2003) People and Performance: How people management impacts on organizational performance, CIPD, London.
- Provis, C., 1996. Unitarism, pluralism, interests and values. British Journal of Industrial Relations, 34(4), pp.473-495.
- Ridley-Duff, R. and Bennett, A (2011). Towards mediation: developing a theoretical framework to understand alternative dispute resolution. Industrial Relations Journal, 42(2), pp.106-123.
- Remington, T.F. and Cui, X.W (2015). The impact of the 2008 labor contract law on labor disputes in China. Journal of East Asian Studies, 15(2), pp.271-299.
- Rindfleisch, A., Malter, A.J., Ganesan, S. and Moorman, C (2008). Cross-sectional versus longitudinal survey research: Concepts, findings, and guidelines. Journal of marketing research. 45(3), pp.261-279.
- Spector, P.E. and Fox, S (2002). An emotion-centered model of voluntary work behavior: Some parallels between counterproductive work behavior and organizational citizenship behavior. Human resource management review, 12(2), pp.269-292.
- Snape, E. and Redman, T (2004). Exchange or covenant? The nature of the member-union relationship. Industrial Relations: A Journal of Economy and Society, 43(4), pp.855-873.
- Snape, E., & Redman, T (2007). The nature and consequences of organization-employee and union-member exchange: An empirical analysis. Journal of Labor Research, 28(2), 359–374.
- Schuler, R. S (1989). Strategic human resource management and industrial relations. Human

- Relations, 42(2), 157–184.
- Scheuer, S (2006). A novel calculus? Institutional change, globalization and industrial conflict in Europe. European Journal of Industrial Relations, 12(2), 143–164.
- Sabrina Zajak (2017), Trade Union Building in Myanmar. Available online: https://www.opendemocracy.net/en/trade-union-building-in-myanmar/.
- Salancik, G.R. and Pfeffer, J (1978) . A social information processing approach to job attitudes and task design. Administrative science quarterly, pp.224-253.
- Saunders, Mark N.K (2015). Research methods for business students. Seventh edition. pp: 163,164,165.
- Streiner, D.L (2003). Starting at the beginning: an introduction to coefficient alpha and internal consistency. Journal of personality assessment, 80 (1), pp.99-103.
- Schober, P., Boer, C. and Schwarte, L.A (2018). Correlation coefficients: appropriate use and interpretation. Anesthesia & analgesia, 126(5), pp.1763-1768.
- Scheuer, S (2006). A novel calculus? Institutional change, globalization and industrial conflict in Europe. European Journal of Industrial Relations, 12(2), pp.143-164.
- Tavakol, M. and Dennick, R (2011). Making sense of Cronbach's alpha. International journal of medical education, 2, p.53.
- Uusitalo, L (1989). Economic man or social man—exploring free riding in the production of collective goods. In Understanding economic behavior (pp. 267-283). Dordrecht: Springer Netherlands.
- Watson, T.J (2006). Organizing and managing work: Organizational, managerial and strategic behavior in theory and practice. Pearson Education.
- Xi, M., Zhou, L., Zhang, X. and Zhao, S (2022). Labor relations conflict in China: An analysis of conflict measure, conflict solution and conflict outcomes. The International Journal of Human Resource Management.
- Xi, M., & Zhao, S (2014). A literature review of industrial relations conflicts: Definition, antecedents and new research perspective. Chinese Journal of Management.
- Xi, M., Xu, Q., Wang, X., & Zhao, S (2017). Partnership practices, labor relations climate, and employee attitudes: Evidence from China. Industrial and Labor Relations.
- Zeller, B. and Trakman, L (2019). Mediation and arbitration: the process of enforcement. Uniform Law Review, 24(2), pp.449-466.